



Greg Follensbee
Executive Director
Regulatory Relations

AT&T Florida
150 South Monroe St.
Suite 400
Tallahassee, FL 32301

T: 850-577-5555
F: 850-224-5073
Greg.Follensbee@att.com
www.att.com

December 19, 2013

Beth Salak, Director
Telecommunications
Florida Public Service Commission
Attn: Tariff Section
2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0850

Dear Ms. Salak:

AT&T Florida (TL720) hereby files the attached tariff page revising its Access Tariff.

Access Services Tariff

See Attachment A

This tariff eliminates Feature Group C from AT&T's Access Tariff. The tariff is effective on December 20, 2013.

Acknowledgment, date of receipt and authority number of this filing are requested.

Your consideration and approval will be appreciated.

Yours very truly,

Greg Follensbee (slg)

Executive Director

Attachments

Index of Tariff Pages

Subject Index	Sixteenth Revised Page 2
Subject Index	Second Revised Page 6
E2	Second Revised Page 28
E2	Second Revised Page 29
E3	Second Revised Page 3
E3	Fourth Revised Page 8
E3	Fourth Revised Page 10
E5	Seventh Revised Page 2
E5	Ninth Revised Page 5
E5	Sixth Revised Page 6
E5	Sixth Revised Page 7
E6 Contents	Ninth Revised Page 1
E6 Contents	Third Revised Page 2
E6 Contents	Fifth Revised Page 3
E6 Contents	Eighth Revised Page 4
E6	Fifth Revised Page 6
E9	Third Revised Page 3
E9	Second Revised Page 4
E9	Second Revised Page 5
E13	Second Revised Page 15
E18	Second Revised Page 6
E18	Third Revised Page 7

Executive Summary

The attached tariff filing eliminates Feature Group C access service from AT&T Florida's Access Service Tariff. There are no customers subscribing to this service.

SUBJECT INDEX

B.

SUBJECT	SECTION
Balance.....	E2.
Basic Channelization System.....	E7.
BellSouth AIN SMS Access Service.....	E34.6
BellSouth AIN Toolkit Service.....	E34.7
BellSouth Billing Name and Address for ANI Service.....	E13.3
BellSouth CCS7 Access Arrangement.....	E6
BellSouth Customer Change Activity Service.....	E13.3
BellSouth Customer Name and Address.....	E13.3
BellSouth Dedicated Ring Service.....	E6., E7.
BellSouth Directory Assistance Access Service.....	E9
BellSouth Expanded Interconnection Service.....	E21
BellSouth Equal Access Subscription.....	E13.3
BellSouth Inward Operator Services.....	E18.1
(DELETED)	
BellSouth Network Visibility Service.....	E21.6
BellSouth Remote Access Service.....	E6.
BellSouth Resold Customer List Information.....	E13.
BellSouth SWA Common Transport IP Option.....	E6
BellSouth SWA Contract Tariffs.....	E26
BellSouth SWA CCSAC.....	E6
BellSouth SWA FGA.....	E6
BellSouth SWA FGB.....	E6
BellSouth SWA FGC.....	E6 (DELETED)
BellSouth SWA FGD.....	E6
BellSouth SWA Transport.....	E6
BellSouth SWA 500 Service.....	E6
BellSouth SWA 900 Service.....	E6
BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service.....	E6
(DELETED).	
(DELETED)	
(DELETED)	
Billing Information (Provision of Access Service).....	E13.3
(DELETED)	
(DELETED)	
Bipolar with 8 Zero Substitution (B8ZS).....	E2.
Bridging (Dedicated Access Services).....	E7.

BELLSOUTH
FLORIDA

ACCESS SERVICES TARIFF
~~TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.~~

~~Second Revised Page 6~~
~~First Revised Page 6~~
~~Original Page 6~~
~~First Revised Page 6~~
~~Original Page 6~~

~~ISSUED: December 19, 2013~~ISSUED: February 14, 1997

~~EFFECTIVE: December 20, 2013~~EFFECTIVE: March 1, 1997

~~BY: Marshall M. Criser III, President -FL~~BY: Joseph P. Lacher, President -FL

Miami, Florida

SUBJECT INDEX

F.

SUBJECT	SECTION	
Facilities, Ownership of	E2.3	
Feature Group A (<i>BellSouth SWA</i> FGA)	E6.2	(+)
Feature Group B (<i>BellSouth SWA</i> FGB)	E6.2	(+)
Feature Group C (<i>BellSouth SWA</i> FGC)	E6.2 (DELETED)	(D)
Feature Group D (<i>BellSouth SWA</i> FGD)	E6.2	(+)

E2. GENERAL REGULATIONS¹

E2.4 Payment Arrangements and Credit Allowances (Cont'd)

E2.4.7 Title or Ownership Rights

- A. The payment of rates and charges by ICs or End Users for the services offered under the provisions of this Tariff does not assign, confer or transfer title or ownership rights to proposals or facilities developed or utilized, respectively, by the Company in the provision of such services.

E2.4.8 Billing of Access Service Provided by Multiple Companies

The Company will adhere to the standards for billing of Access Service by multiple companies that are set forth in reference documents Ordering and Billing Forum: Multiple Exchange Carrier Access Billing (MECAB) and Ordering and Billing Forum: Multiple Exchange Carrier Ordering and Design (MECOD).

A. Feature Group A (FGA) Service²

When a Feature Group A (or LSBSA)³ Switched Access Service is ordered by an IC or End User where one end of the Transport element is in the Company's operating territory and the other end is in another Exchange Telephone Company's operating territory, the Exchange Telephone Company in whose territory the FGA dial-tone office is located will accept the order. In addition, the Exchange Telephone Company in whose territory the IC's or End User's serving wire center is located must also receive a copy of the order from the IC or End User. The Exchange Telephone Company that accepts the order will then determine the charges involved, arrange to provide the Access Service ordered and bill the charges in accordance with its Access Service Tariff.

Upon agreement of the Exchange Telephone Companies involved in the provision of FGA service, the dedicated portion of FGA service (i.e., Switched Dedicated Interoffice Channel, Switched Local Channel and Channelization Equipment) will be billed in accordance with the provisions of B. and C. following. For non-dedicated portions of FGA service, including the Interconnection charge, the rates of the billing Company will apply.

B. Single Bill Arrangements

1. General

If agreed to by the Exchange Telephone Companies involved in the provision of the service, a single bill arrangement will be provided for FGB, ~~FGC~~, FGD and the dedicated portions of FGA service. In the event that the Exchange Telephone Companies involved agree to change from one billing arrangement to another, the IC or End User will be notified at least 30 days prior to the effective date of such change. (D)

2. Ordering

The IC shall place its access service request with each Exchange Telephone Company involved in the provision of the service.

3. Rating and Billing of Service

Note 1: Text is shown as new due to reissue of all Tariff Sections. No changes in rates or regulations were made with this filing.

Note 2: Except where indicated herein, references to feature groups will also include the applicable Basic Serving Arrangement (BSA) as detailed in the matrix of Section 6.1.3 of Tariff FCC No. 1 (e.g., the term FGA represents both FGA and Line Side Basic Service Arrangement (LSBSA)). (E)

Note 3: Where LSBSA is provisioned with a DNAL, this sub-section, E2.4.8 shall also apply to the DNAL. (E)

E2. GENERAL REGULATIONS¹

E2.4 Payment Arrangements and Credit Allowances (Cont'd)

E2.4.8 Billing of Access Service Provided by Multiple Companies (Cont'd)

B. Single Bill Arrangements (Cont'd)

3. Rating and Billing of Service (Cont'd)

The billing company will be as agreed to by the Exchange Telephone Companies involved in the provision of the service. The single bill arrangement may be provided under the following single bill alternatives if agreed to by such companies:

- a. The billing company will bill and collect all appropriate charges in accordance with the regulations, rates and charges in its Access Service Tariff, or
- b. The billing company will bill and collect all appropriate charges in accordance with the rates and charges in its access tariff, for the portion of the service it provides, and in accordance with the rates and charges of the access tariffs of the other Exchange Telephone Companies involved, for the portion of the service which they provide. The Interconnection charge of the end office Telephone Company will apply. The bill will separately identify each company's rates and charges, or
- c. The billing company will bill and collect all appropriate charges in accordance with the rates and charges in the access tariffs of the other involved Exchange Telephone Companies, as forwarded to it by such companies for the portion of the service they provide, and in accordance with the rates and charges in its own access tariff for the portion of the service it provides. The Interconnection charge of the end office Telephone Company will apply. The bill will separately identify each company's rates and charges.

For b. and c. preceding, the charges billed for the portion of service provided by this Company are determined as set forth in C.3.a., b. and c. following. For nonrecurring charges, 100 percent of this Company's charge shall apply.

C. Multiple Bill Arrangements

1. General

Separate bills will be rendered by the Exchange Telephone Companies for FGB², ~~FGC~~, and FGD ~~and~~ the dedicated portions of FGA Access Service if the administration of a single bill arrangement, as set forth in B. preceding, is not agreed upon by the companies involved. In the event that the Exchange Telephone Companies involved agree to change from one billing arrangement to another, the IC or End User will be notified at least 30 days prior to the effective date of such change. (D)

2. Ordering

The IC shall place its access service request with each Exchange Telephone Company involved in the provision of the service.

3. Rating and Billing of Service

Note 1: Text is shown as new due to reissue of all Tariff Sections. No changes in rates or regulations were made with this filing.

Note 2: Except where indicated herein, references to feature groups will also include the applicable Basic Serving Arrangement (BSA) as detailed in the matrix of Section 6.1.3 of Tariff FCC No. 1 (e.g., the term FGA represents both FGA and Line Side Basic Service Arrangement (LSBSA)). (E)
(E)

ISSUED: December 19, 2013

ISSUED: February 14, 1997

EFFECTIVE: December 20, 2013

EFFECTIVE: March 1, 1997

BY: Marshall M. Criser III, President - FL
BY: Joseph P. Lacher, President - FL

Miami, Florida

E3. CARRIER COMMON LINE ACCESS

E3.5 Payment Arrangements (Cont'd)

- B. (Cont'd)
 - 2. 0.000590 per day, compounded daily for the number of days from the payment date to and including the date that the IC actually makes the payment to the Company.
- C. In the event a billing dispute concerning a month's Carrier Common Line Access billed to the IC by the Company is resolved in favor of the Company, any payments withheld pending settlement of the dispute shall be subject to the late payment penalty set forth in B. preceding. If the IC disputes the bill on or before the payment date, and pays the undisputed amount on or before the payment date, any late payment charge for the disputed amount will not start until 10 days after the payment date. If the billing dispute is resolved in favor of the IC, no late payment will apply to the disputed amount. In addition, if the IC disputes the billed amount and pays the total amount (i.e., the non-disputed amount and the disputed amount) on or before the payment date and the billing dispute is resolved in the favor of the IC, the IC will receive a credit for a disputed amount penalty from the billing entity if the billing dispute is not resolved within 10 working days following the payment date or the date the IC furnishes to the billing entity documentation to support its claim plus 10 working days, whichever date is the later date. The disputed amount penalty shall be the disputed amount resolved in the IC's favor times a penalty factor.

E3.6 Determination of Usage Subject to Carrier Common Line Access Charges

Except as set forth herein, all *BellSouth SWA* service provided to the IC will be subject to Carrier Common Line Access Charges.

- A. When the IC reports interstate and intrastate use of *BellSouth SWA* service, the associated Carrier Common Line Access used by the IC for intrastate use will be determined as set forth in E3.9 following.
- B. ~~Where *BellSouth SWA FGC* or *BellSouth SWA TSBSA 2* end office switching is provided without Company recording and the IC records minutes of use which will be used to determine Carrier Common Line Access charges (i.e., *BellSouth SWA FGC* or *BellSouth SWA TSBSA 2* operator and calls such as pay telephone sent paid, operator DDD, operator person, collect, credit card, third number and/or other like calls), the IC shall furnish such minutes of use detail to the Company in a timely manner. If the IC does not furnish the data to the Company, the IC shall identify all *BellSouth SWA* services which could carry such calls in order for the Company to accumulate the minutes of use through the use of special Company measuring and recording equipment.~~
- C. When access to the local exchange is required to provide an IC Service that uses service (e.g. MTS/WATS-type, telex, data, etc.) a resold Private Line Service, *BellSouth SWA FG* service rates and regulations, as set forth in E6.7 following will apply. Carrier Common Line Access rates and charges as set forth in E3.10 following apply in accordance with the resale rate regulations as set forth in E3.7 following.

E3.7 Resold Services

- A. Where the IC is reselling MTS or MTS-type service(s) on which the Carrier Common Line and *BellSouth SWA* charges have been assessed, the IC may, at the option of the IC, obtain *BellSouth SWA FGA*, *BellSouth SWA FGB*, ~~*BellSouth SWA FGD*~~, *BellSouth SWA LSBSA* or *BellSouth SWA TSBSA 1* or 3 *BellSouth SWA FG* service under this Tariff as set forth in Section E6. following for originating and/or terminating access in the local exchange. Such access group arrangements, whether single lines or trunks or multiline hunt groups or trunk groups, will have Carrier Common Line Access Charges applied as set forth in E3.10 following in accordance with the resale rate regulations set forth in this Section. For purposes of administering this provision:

E3. CARRIER COMMON LINE ACCESS

E3.9 Rate Regulations

- (D)
- A. The Carrier Common Line Charges will be billed to each BellSouth SWA service provided under this Tariff in accordance with the regulations as set forth following except as set forth in E3.7.D preceding and D. following.
 - B. ~~When access minutes which are used to determine the Carrier Common Line Charges, they will be accumulated using call detail recorded by Company equipment except as set forth in C. following and BellSouth SWA FGC or BellSouth SWA TSBSA 2 operator and automated operator service systems call detail such as line controlled pay station sent paid, operator DDD, operator person, collect, credit card, third number and/or other like calls recorded by the IC. The Company measuring and recording equipment except as set forth in C. following will be associated with end office or local tandem switching equipment and will record each originating and terminating access minute where answer supervision is received. The accumulated access minutes will be summed on a line by line basis, by line group or end office, whichever type of account is used by the Company, for each IC and then rounded to the nearest minute.~~ (D)
 - C. When Carrier Common Line Access Service is provided in association with BellSouth SWA FGA, BellSouth SWA FGB, BellSouth SWA LSBSA and BellSouth SWA TSBSA 1 BellSouth SWA service in an end office not converted to equal access, in Company end offices that are not equipped for measurement capabilities, an assumed average access minutes will be used to determine the Carrier Common Line charges. The assumed average access minutes are as set forth in E6.7.8 following.
 - D. When the IC orders line side BellSouth SWA as set forth in E6.7.3. following and reports the data as set forth in E3.4.F. preceding and in E6.7.3. following, the IC monthly Carrier Common Line Charge access minutes will be adjusted as follows:
 - 1. For the first month both the BellSouth SWA service and the resold Dedicated Access Line Service provided under this Tariff are in service in the same state in the same LATA and provided by the same Company, the Carrier Common Line Access originating access minutes for the IC LATA account or End Office account involved, whichever type of account is used by the billing entity, will be adjusted as follows. After the billing entity verifies that the number of Dedicated Access Line Services in service as reported by the IC is accurate, the Carrier Common Line Access originating access minutes developed for the IC account involved will be reduced by the amount of minutes associated with resold Dedicated Access Line Services reported as set forth in E3.4.F. preceding and E6.7.3. following for line side BellSouth SWA service. The adjustment will be made to the involved IC account no later than either the next bill date, or the one subsequent to that, depending on when the report is received.

E3. CARRIER COMMON LINE ACCESS

E3.9 Rate Regulations (Cont'd)

G. After the adjustments as set forth in E3.7.D. and D. preceding have been applied, when necessary, to the BellSouth SWA service access minutes, the charges for the involved customer account will be determined as follows: (Cont'd)

3. Terminating access per minute charge(s) apply to: (Cont'd)

- all originating access minutes of use associated with BellSouth SWA FGA and BellSouth SWA LSBSA services where the off-hook supervisory signaling is forwarded by the customer's equipment when the called party answers;
- all originating access minutes of use associated with calls placed to 700, 800 and 900 numbers, less the percentage of originating access minutes of use reported by the customer, as set forth following, that are associated with calls placed to 700, 800 and 900 numbers that terminate in a BellSouth SWA service that is assessed Carrier Common Line Access Service charges.

For originating access minutes of use associated with calls placed to 700, 800 and 900 numbers which terminate on a BellSouth SWA service assessed Carrier Common Line Access Service charges, the customer shall report as follows: On or before the fifteenth day of each March, June, September and December the customer shall provide the Company a report of the percentage of total interstate 700, 800 and 900 originating minutes of use that will terminate in a BellSouth SWA service that is assessed Carrier Common Line Access Service charges for the forthcoming quarter. The reported percentage will be used by the Company to determine the customer's current monthly bill for the originating minutes of use for which the report was provided as set forth in 5. following. The customer reported percentage should reflect any under or over estimate in the prior quarter. In the event the customer does not supply a report, the Company will assume the percentage to be the same as that provided in the previous quarterly report.

If a dispute arises concerning the customer provided quarterly percentage report, the Company may request the customer to provide the data the customer used to determine the percentage. The customer shall retain for twelve (12) months call detail records from which the reported percentage credit can be ascertained. Upon request of the Company, the customer shall make records available for inspection as reasonably necessary for purposes of verification of the percentages and shall supply the data within 30 days of the Company's request. The Company will not request such data more than twice a year.

H. The originating premium access ~~or non-premium access,~~ per minute charge(s) apply to all originating access minutes of use: (D)

- less those originating access minutes of use associated with BellSouth SWA FGA and BellSouth SWA LSBSA services where off-hook supervisory signaling is forwarded by the customer's equipment when the called party answers;
- less all originating access minutes of use associated with calls placed to 700, 800, and 900 numbers;
- plus all originating access minutes of use associated with calls placed to 700, 800, and 900 numbers for which the customer furnishes a report of the percentage of minutes that terminate in a BellSouth SWA service that is assessed Carrier Common Line Access Service charges, and for which a corresponding reduction in the number of terminating access minutes of use has been made as set forth in G. preceding.

I. (DELETED) (D)

E5. ORDERING OPTIONS FOR ACCESS SERVICES

E5.1 General (Cont'd)

E5.1.2 Ordering Conditions (Cont'd)

- E. BellSouth SWA Service orders for BellSouth SWA FGB, BellSouth SWA FGD and BellSouth SWA TSBSA 1 and 3 shall be in trunks.
- F. Dedicated Access Line service must be ordered in lines for use with a ~~BellSouth SWA FGC~~, BellSouth SWA FGD and BellSouth SWA TSBSA ~~2 and 3~~ service which is in service or on order. (D)
- G. The day upon which the customer has provided to BellSouth a firm commitment for the service and complete and accurate information to allow for the processing of the Access Order *by three o'clock p.m. Eastern Standard Time (EST)*¹ is the Application Date. BellSouth will release an optional initial Pending Order Confirmation, which will include the BellSouth order number and circuit identification. At the customer's request, when BellSouth facility availability is verified, either a Firm Order Confirmation, which will include critical date information, or a Design and Ordering Confirmation, which will include design as well as critical date information, will be released. Critical date information will include the Service Date. The Service Date is the date service is to be made available to the customer and billing will commence. (E)

A Pending Order Confirmation is available for orders for BellSouth-provided switched access dedicated transport services, where ordered separately from other switched access services, and for BellSouth-provided special access services. A Design and Ordering Confirmation is not available for orders submitted by end users. A Pending Order Confirmation and a Design and Ordering Confirmation are not available on orders for services provided jointly with another exchange telephone company.
- H. The time required to provision the service (i.e., the interval between the Application Date and the Service Date) is known as the service interval. Such intervals will be established in accordance with published service date interval guidelines which are available to ICs and End Users upon request, whether the IC's service is subject to standard or negotiated intervals. The IC or End User may request a service date other than that established pursuant to the service date interval guidelines, and the Company, where possible, will establish the service date in accordance with such request, subject, however, to other applicable provisions of this Tariff.
- I. The following charges will apply for the installation, move or rearrangement of BellSouth SWA or Special Access (a.k.a. BellSouth SPA) service orders with an agreed upon service date interval of four business days or less following the Application Date of the order. These charges are in addition to other applicable BellSouth SWA or Special Access (a.k.a. BellSouth SPA) nonrecurring charges for installations, moves or rearrangements of service. These charges will not apply to services provided on a Special Services Arrangement or on an Individual Case Basis, or in the event the agreed upon Service Date, as set forth preceding, is not met, or at the request of the customer to convert from a lower to higher order of service as provided for in E2.4.9A in this Tariff.
 1. Per Service Order

Nonrecurring	
Charge	USOC
(a) Special Access (a.k.a. BellSouth SPA)	SOCSP
(b) BellSouth SWA	SOCSW

- J. An IC or End User who initiates a conversion (rollover) of a BellSouth SWA DS1 to a BellSouth SWA DS3 High Capacity service is also responsible for submitting Network Channel Interface (NCI) Code Update requests, either mechanically or manually, on all sub-DS1 level circuits that ride the channelized BellSouth SWA DS1 High Capacity service being rolled over. The Company and the IC or End User will work cooperatively to establish the number of circuits which may be submitted monthly for purposes of mechanical NCI Code updates associated with rollovers of BellSouth SWA FG DS1 High Capacity service to BellSouth SWA DS3 High Capacity service.
- K. An IC who converts from an existing feature group service to an equivalent unbundled service (i.e., BellSouth SWA FGA to BellSouth SWA LSBSA, BellSouth SWA FGB to BellSouth SWA TSBSA 1, ~~BellSouth SWA FGC to BellSouth SWA TSBSA 2~~, and BellSouth SWA FGD to BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3) shall do so on no lower than an end office level. The Company and the IC will work cooperatively to accomplish these conversions. (D)

E5.1.3 Provision of Other Services

- A. Testing Service, Additional Labor and Special Facilities Routing shall be ordered with an Access Order as set forth in B. following. The rates and charges for these services, as set forth in other sections of this Tariff, will apply in addition to the ordering charges set forth in this section and the rates and charges for the Access Service with which they are associated.

Note 1: Access Orders received after three o'clock p.m. EST will be processed the next business day, which will be the Application Date. (E)

E5. ORDERING OPTIONS FOR ACCESS SERVICES

E5.2 Access Order (Cont'd)

E5.2.1 Provision of Service (Cont'd)

B. Information Required (Cont'd)

3. For ~~BellSouth SWA FGC~~, BellSouth SWA FGD, or BellSouth SWA TSBSA 2 ~~or~~ 3 service, the IC shall specify: (D)
 - a. The number of BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 trunks
 - (1) for trunks ordered to an end office, the end office
 - (2) for trunks ordered to an Access Tandem, the Access Tandem Switch
 - (3) for trunks with coin sent-paid capability ordered to a TOPS tandem, the TOPS Tandem Switch
 - (4) an estimate of the amount of traffic it will generate to and/or from each end office subtending the access and/or TOPS tandem (to assist the Company in its own efforts to project further facility requirements).
 - b. BellSouth SWA Transport Options, if any
 - c. Local Switching Options (including BSEs), if any
 - d. The traffic type using the categories specified in Section 6.1.1 of Tariff FCC No. 1 to enable efficient provisions and billing functions. (E)
 - e. Provide Connecting Facility Assignment (CFA), if associated with a high capacity facility
 - f. For BellSouth SWA Local Channel and Switched Dedicated Interoffice Channel, the capacity
The coin capable end offices and TOPS tandem switches are identified in the Wire Center Section of the NECA No. 4 Tariff.
4. For BellSouth SWA FGD and BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 with BellSouth SWA CCSAC in addition to the information listed in 3. preceding, the IC shall provide: a reference to existing signaling connections or reference to a related BellSouth SWA CCSAC signaling connection order; BellSouth SWA CCSAC Local Switching options, if any; for BellSouth CCS7 Signaling Connections, STP point codes and location identifier codes, circuit identification codes and switch type; and, for BellSouth CCS7 Signaling Connections, specification of the level of diversity in its network, as defined in the BellSouth Guidelines to Technical Publication TR-TSV-000905.
Service Installation Guarantees, as set forth in E2.4.10 of this Tariff, are not applicable for the installations of CCSAC signaling.
For BellSouth SWA FGD and BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 with 64 Clear Channel Capability (CCC), in addition to the information listed in 3. and 4. preceding, the IC shall specify 64 CCC Local Switching Options, if any.
5. When ordering Operator Transfer Service, the IC shall specify the number of new or additional ~~BellSouth SWA FGC~~, BellSouth SWA FGD, BellSouth SWA TSBSA 2 ~~and~~ 3 Trunks desired, if any, to carry originating traffic from the Operator Services System location to the IC location in each LATA served by the Operator Services System where the IC requests Operator Transfer Service. (D)
(D)
6. For BellSouth Inward Operator Services (IOS) Access Service, the IC shall specify:
 - a. For trunks to an IOS location
 - (1) The IOS location
7. For BellSouth *SWA Common Transport IP Option*, the IC shall specify:
 - a. An estimate of the amount of traffic it will generate to each access tandem stated in minutes of use.

E5. ORDERING OPTIONS FOR ACCESS SERVICES

E5.2 Access Order (Cont'd)

E5.2.1 Provision of Service (Cont'd)

B. Information Required (Cont'd)

6. For Inward BellSouth Operator Services (IOS) Access Service, the IC shall specify: (Cont'd)
 - a. For trunks to an IOS location (Cont'd)
 - (2) The number of trunks required to carry the IC's IOS traffic to the IOS location specified in (1) preceding.

C. Traffic Engineering Responsibilities

1. The IC is responsible to assure that sufficient access facilities have been ordered to handle its traffic.
2. When ordering BellSouth SWA service, the trunks may be determined by the IC in the following manner. For each day the IC shall determine the highest number of trunks in use for a single hour. The IC shall, for the same hour period (i.e., busy hour), pick the twenty consecutive business days in a calendar year which add up to the largest number of trunks in use. The IC shall then determine the average busy hour trunks by dividing the largest number of trunks in use figure, for the same hour period, for the twenty consecutive business day period by 20. This computation shall be performed for each end office and/or access tandem the IC wishes to serve.
3. If data to develop a twenty-consecutive day period is not available, the IC may use a twenty day period that contains as many consecutive days as is available.
4. When an IC desires BellSouth SWA service to an end office that is a remote switching office, the IC must order to the host office which controls the remote switching office since all traffic to and/or from a remote switching office must be routed through the host office.
5. When ordering Dedicated Access Services from this Tariff, the IC or End User must provide a Percent Interstate Usage (PIU) of 0 percent. The jurisdiction will be determined as set forth in E2.3.14.A.9 *of this Tariff*.
6. When ordering Dedicated Access Line Service from this Tariff, the IC must provide a Percent Interstate Usage (PIU) of 0 percent. The jurisdiction will be determined as set forth in E2.3.14.A.9 *of this Tariff*.
7. For all access services ordered by an IC, proof of certification by the Florida Public Service Commission must be provided by the IC to the Company in accordance with the provisions in E2.3 *of this Tariff*.

D. Determination of CCS7 Signaling Connections and Terminations

The customer shall work cooperatively with the Company to determine the number of CCS7 Signaling Connections and CCS7 Signaling Terminations required to handle its signaling traffic.

E. BellSouth SWA 500 Service

For BellSouth SWA 500 service, as described in Section 6.2 of Tariff FCC No. 1 the IC shall order in the same manner which is set forth preceding for ordering ~~BellSouth SWA FGC~~, BellSouth SWA FGD, BellSouth SWA TSBSA 2 and 3 except that ICs must order ~~BellSouth SWA FGC~~, BellSouth SWA FGD, BellSouth SWA TSBSA 2 or 3 to all end offices within the IC designated LATA(s), either through the tandem or by direct connections to the end office.

The IC is also responsible for reporting to the Company the percent interstate usage (PIU) for BellSouth SWA 500 service as set forth in E2.3.14 *of this Tariff*.

(D)

(D)

E5. ORDERING OPTIONS FOR ACCESS SERVICES

E5.2 Access Order (Cont'd)

E5.2.1 Provision of Service (Cont'd)

F. BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service

For BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service as described in Section 6.2.5 of Tariff FCC No. 1, the IC shall order in the same manner which is set forth preceding for ordering BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 except that the IC must order BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 to all access tandems or direct connections to all end offices designated by the Company as Service Switching Points for BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service within the LATA. Direct trunk routes cannot be provided unless the end office is equipped to provide the IC identification function. All traffic originating from end offices not equipped to provide the IC identification function require routing via the serving access tandem at which the function is available. Service must be ordered accordingly. (E)

The IC is also responsible for reporting to the Company the percent interstate usage (PIU) for BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service as set forth in E2.3.14 *of this Tariff*.

G. BellSouth 8XX Toll Free Dialing Number Administration Service

When ordering BellSouth 8XX Toll Free Dialing Number Administration service as described in E13.3.12 *of this Tariff*, the IC must, at a minimum, provide the following information to the Company:

- Area of service¹
- Name(s) of intraLATA and interLATA carrier(s), as applicable
- Access Carrier Name Abbreviation (ACNA) Code of the interLATA and intraLATA carrier, as applicable
- Activation date

When the POTS number is to be delivered to an IC, the IC must provide the full 10-digit POTS number to be associated with the 800 number and must indicate to whom the POTS number is to be delivered. In addition, the IC must also provide the POTS numbers associated with the intraLATA portion of BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service for subscribers who will use the Company for intraLATA BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service.

For the transport of any intraLATA 800 call by the Company, the IC must provide the end user billing information necessary for the Company to bill the appropriate intraLATA rates.

If the IC desires any of the options available with BellSouth 8XX Toll Free Dialing Number Administration Service as set forth in E13.3.12 *of this Tariff*, these must also be specified on the order for service.

H. BellSouth Directory Assistance Service

For BellSouth Directory Assistance service, the IC shall specify the number of trunks from the IC premises to the Directory Assistance location. Unless direct routing is specified by the IC, BellSouth Directory Assistance service will be provided with BellSouth SWA FGB, ~~BellSouth SWA FGC~~, BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA service. The IC shall also specify which BellSouth SWA FGB, ~~BellSouth SWA FGC~~, BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA service trunk group is to be associated with the BellSouth Directory Assistance service. (D) (D)

Note 1 : The standard area of service is the entire state. Other levels of area of service may be provided with the Customized Area of Service feature.

E6. BELLSOUTH SWA SERVICE

CONTENTS

E6.1	General	1	
E6.1.1	BellSouth SWA Service Arrangements and Manner of Provision	1	(D)
E6.1.2	BellSouth SWA WATS Service	5	
E6.1.3	Rate Categories	5	
E6.1.4	Special Facilities Routing	26.1	
E6.1.5	Design Layout Report	26.1	
E6.1.6	Acceptance Testing	26.1	
E6.1.7	Ordering Options and Conditions	27	
E6.1.8	BellSouth Access Collocation Cross Connect Service	27	(D)
E6.2	Provision and Description of BellSouth SWA Service Arrangements	27.1	
E6.2.1	BellSouth SWA FGA	28	(D)
E6.2.2	BellSouth SWA FGB	30	
E6.2.3	BellSouth SWA FGC	33	
E6.2.4	BellSouth SWA FGD	35	
E6.2.5	Reserved for Future Use	39	
E6.2.6	BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service	40	
E6.2.7	BellSouth SWA 900 Service	42	
E6.2.8	BellSouth SWA LSBSA	43	
E6.2.9	BellSouth SWA TSBSA	47	
E6.2.10	BellSouth SWA 500 Service	57	
E6.2.11	BellSouth Dedicated Ring	58	
E6.2.12	Channels for Use With BellSouth Managed Shared Ring	58.2	
E6.2.13	Channels for Use With BellSouth SWA Managed Shared Network Service	58.3	
E6.2.14	BellSouth SWA Common Transport IP Option	58.3	(D)
E6.4	Transmission Specifications	3	(M)(C)
E6.7	Rate Regulations	5	(M)(C)
E6.8	Rates and Charges	7	(M)(C)

Material appearing on this page previously appeared on Revised Pages 2, 3 and 4.

~~E6. BELLSOUTH SWA SERVICE~~

~~CONTENTS~~

E6.3	Local Switching Optional Features	59	(D)
E6.3.1	Common Switching Optional Features (BellSouth SWA FG Customers Only)	59	(D)
E6.3.2	Common Switching (BellSouth SWA FG, BellSouth SWA Basic Serving Arrangement Customers)	61	
E6.3.3	Basic Service Elements (BellSouth SWA Basic Serving Arrangement Customers Only)	65	
E6.3.4	Common Switching Optional Features For Use With BellSouth SWA WATS Service (BellSouth SWA FG and BellSouth SWA Basic Serving Arrangement Customers)	71	
E6.3.5	Basic Service Elements For Use With BellSouth SWA WATS Service (BellSouth SWA Basic Serving Arrangement Customers Only)	72	
E6.3.6	BellSouth SWA Transport Termination	72	
E6.4	Transmission Specifications	74	
E6.4.1	Standard Transmission Specifications	74	
E6.4.2	Data Transmission Parameters	79	
E6.4.3	BellSouth SWA WATS Service	81	
E6.5	Obligations of the Company	82	
E6.5.1	Network Management	82	
E6.5.2	Design and Traffic Routing of BellSouth SWA Service	83	
E6.5.3	Provision of Service Performance Data	83	
E6.5.4	Trunk Group Measurements Reports	83	
E6.5.5	Determination of Number of Transmission Paths	83	
E6.5.6	Determination of Number of End Office Transport Terminations	83	
E6.5.7	Design Blocking Probability	84	(D)

~~E6. BELLSOUTH SWA SERVICE~~

~~CONTENTS~~

E6.6	Obligations of the IC	85
E6.6.1	Report Requirements	85
E6.6.2	Supervisory Signaling	86
E6.6.3	Trunk Group Measurement Report	86
E6.6.4	Design of BellSouth SWA Services	86
E6.6.5	Billing Data for Terminating Usage	87
E6.7	Rate Regulations	87
E6.7.1	Description and Application of Rates and Charges	87
E6.7.2	Minimum Periods	92
E6.7.3	BellSouth SWA Service for Resale of Other IC Service	92
E6.7.4	Minimum Monthly Charge	94
E6.7.5	Reserved for Future Use	95
E6.7.6	Change of Service Category	95
E6.7.7	Moves	96
E6.7.8	Measuring Access Minutes	97
E6.7.9	Network Blocking Charge for BellSouth SWA FGD and BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3	101
E6.7.10	Application of Rates for Extension Service	102
E6.7.11	Message Unit Credit	102
E6.7.12	Reserved for Future Use	103
E6.7.13	Application of Rates	103
E6.7.14	Reserved for Future Use	104
E6.7.15	Reserved for Future Use	104
E6.7.16	Reserved for Future Use	104
E6.7.17	Reserved for Future Use	104
E6.7.18	BellSouth Remote Access Service	104
E6.7.19	Mileage Measurements	104
E6.7.20	Shared Use	106

Material previously appeared on this page now appears on Ninth revised Page 1.

~~E6. BELLSOUTH SWA SERVICE~~

~~CONTENTS~~

~~E6.7 Rate Regulations (Cont'd)~~

E6.7.21 Facility Hubs	106
E6.7.22 (DELETED)	107
E6.7.23 Zone Pricing Switched Transport	107
E6.7.24 Shared Network Arrangement	107
E6.7.25 BellSouth Dedicated Ring	107
E6.7.26 Channels for Use With BellSouth Managed Shared Ring	107.3
E6.7.27 Channels for Use With BellSouth SWA Managed Shared Network Service	107.3

~~E6.8 Rates and Charges~~

E6.8.1 BellSouth SWA Transport	108
E6.8.2 Local Switching	117
E6.8.3 BellSouth SWA WATS Service	125
E6.8.4 BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service	129
E6.8.5 Reserved for Future Use	130
E6.8.6 Reserved for Future Use	130
E6.8.7 Reserved for Future Use	130
E6.8.8 Service Rearrangements	130
E6.8.9 Transfer of Service	131
E6.8.10 Shared Network Arrangement	131
E6.8.11 Reserved for Future Use	132
E6.8.12 Reserved for Future Use	132
E6.8.13 BellSouth SWA 500 Service	132
E6.8.14 (DELETED)	132

Material previously appeared on this page now appears on Ninth revised Page 1.

E6. BELLSOUTH SWA SERVICE

E 6.7 Rate Regulations (Cont'd)

E6.7.3 BellSouth SWA Service for Resale of Other IC Service (Con'td)

3. When both line side (i.e., *BellSouth SWA* FGA and *BellSouth SWA* LSBSA) and trunk side (i.e., *BellSouth SWA* FGB, ~~*BellSouth SWA* FGC~~, *BellSouth SWA* FGD and *BellSouth SWA* TSBSA) *BellSouth SWA* service are used in association with the resale of WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) service, the number of WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) services to be associated with each line side or trunk side *BellSouth SWA* service. If this split is not reported, the Company will assume all the WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) services are to be associated with line side *BellSouth SWA* service.

The preceding information and the information required in B. following must be reported for each LATA in which the IC is reselling services. For those LATAs that are multistate LATAs, the IC must report the information by state within the LATA. In order for the rate treatment in D. following to apply, both this *BellSouth SWA* service and the associated WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) services must be in the same state and be provided by the same Company.

- B. Each of the *BellSouth SWA* services used by the IC in association with the resale of WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) service must be in the same LATA as the WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) services in order for such *BellSouth SWA* service to be rated as set forth in D. following. The *BellSouth SWA* service must also be connected either directly or indirectly to the IC terminal location at which the associated WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) services are terminated. Direct connections are those where the *BellSouth SWA* service is terminated at the same IC terminal location. Indirect connections are those where the *BellSouth SWA* service is terminated at a second IC terminal location in the same LATA, which is in turn connected to the first IC terminal location by facilities that can be used by the *BellSouth SWA* service to reach the first IC terminal location (i.e., the IC terminal location where the WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) services are terminated). When more than one IC terminal location is involved in a LATA, the IC shall notify the Company in writing and shall report the locations of the involved IC terminal locations.
- C. For the initial month, the data that the IC reports as set forth in A. and B. preceding will be used by the Company to determine the rates and charges as set forth in D. following. For each subsequent month, the IC must update the report per A. and B. preceding for each LATA for the preceding monthly period. The report shall be delivered to the Company, at a location specified by the Company, no later than 15 days after the bill date shown on the WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) services bill. If an updated report is required but is not received by the Company during the monthly period after the initial monthly period, the Company will assume there are no resold WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) services associated with *BellSouth SWA* services in the LATA. The rate treatment set forth in D. following will not apply in these cases.
- D. When the IC reports *BellSouth SWA* services associated with the resale of WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) services in a LATA as set forth in A., B. and C. preceding, and the Company verifies the reports are accurate, such *BellSouth SWA* services will be rated as follows:
 1. For line side *BellSouth SWA* services (i.e., *BellSouth SWA* FGA and *BellSouth SWA* LSBSA) in a LATA associated with the resale of WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) services, the LATA access minutes used to determine the charges for *BellSouth SWA* Transport, Local Switching (LS1 and LS3) and Line Termination will be reduced by the total number of minutes each WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) service reported by the IC as set forth in A., B. or C. preceding. However, the access minutes for the line side *BellSouth SWA* services in the LATA, adjusted as set forth in this or any other section of this Tariff, that are billed to an IC in a monthly period shall not be less than zero. The adjustment will be made to the involved IC account no later than either the next bill date, or the one subsequent to that, depending on when the report is received.
- E. When the IC notifies the Company that *BellSouth SWA* services is to be used in association with the resale of WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) service, the notification automatically grants the Company the right to audit (1) the IC terminal locations to verify the use of facilities as reported in A., B. or C. preceding, and (2) all of the records, work papers and back up documentation for each report as set forth in A., B. or C. preceding. The Company also has the right to contact and review the records of other involved entities to verify the data the IC reports is accurate.

All of the records, work paper and backup documentation for each report furnished the Company as set forth in A., B. or C. preceding shall be available (for one year from the date of the report) during normal business hours at an IC location in the involved LATA, upon reasonable request by the Company, in order to permit a review by the Company auditor or outside auditor under contract to the Company. If the records, work papers and backup documentation are not provided or are insufficient or not in accordance with the provision of this paragraph and A., B. and C. preceding, the adjustments and rates as set forth in D. preceding shall not apply until the deficiencies are corrected and new reports as required in A., B. and C. preceding are delivered to the Company.
- F. When the IC reports line side *BellSouth SWA* services associated with the resale of WATS Access Line (*a.k.a. BellSouth SPA WATS Line*) service in a LATA, as set forth in A., B. or C. preceding, the regulations set forth in E3.7.D preceding shall apply.

E9. BELLSOUTH DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE ACCESS SERVICE

E9.2 Undertaking of the Company (Cont'd)

E9.2.2 Access Locations and Call Transport (Cont'd)

B. BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service will be provided between the IC terminal location and the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service location by the Company at rates and charges as set forth in E9.5 following and as follows: (Cont'd)

3. Directory Transport (Cont'd)

c. Directory Transport facilities are specified by the IC and include the following rate categories. These rate categories are further defined in Section E6. *of this Tariff*, BellSouth SWA service. (Cont'd) (E)

(2) Switched Interoffice Channel, either Common or Dedicated must be specified by the IC.

Switched Dedicated Interoffice Channels (SW DIOC) are used for the transport of the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service call to the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access location without utilizing a Company Access Tandem Switch or for the transport of the call to the Access Tandem where *an* Access Tandem *is utilized*. The SW DIOC is assessed a monthly rate, per mile, based on the capacity ordered by the IC. (E)

Where a Company Access Tandem is utilized, Switched Common Interoffice Channels (SW CIOC) are used for the transport of the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service call from the Company Access Tandem Switch *to the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access Location*. The SW CIOC charge is assessed on a per call basis. (E)

For BellSouth SWA Common Transport, the DS3 to DS1 Multiplexer element is applicable. This element provides for use of DS3 to DS1 multiplexer equipment between the Company Access Tandem switch and the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access Location. (E)

(3) Access Tandem Switching provides for the function of the Access Tandem when routing the call from the IC's SWC to the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access location through the Access Tandem. A rate per call will be assessed for each BellSouth Directory Assistance Access call that traverses the Access Tandem.

d. As specified by the IC, BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service is to be routed directly to a BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service location or through an access tandem switch appropriately equipped for BellSouth Directory Assistance Access measurement and served by BellSouth Directory Assistance Access trunks to the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access location when such an access tandem switch is available in combination with BellSouth SWA FGB, ~~BellSouth SWA FGC~~, BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA as a separate BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service Trunk Group. The combination of BellSouth SWA FGB, ~~BellSouth SWA FGC~~, BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA service with BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service will only be provided at such available and appropriately equipped access tandem switches. All BellSouth Directory Assistance Access calls routed via this combination to the access tandem will be completed to the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access location and subject to the charges set forth in E9.5 following. If the IC does not want BellSouth Directory Assistance Access calls completed to the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access location via this combination, the IC may block the call. (D)

e. When Directory Transport is provided, multifrequency address signaling is required with wink start-start pulsing signals provided. The IC shall address each call to the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service location using NPA+555+1212 or when required by the Company, 555-1212. Only NPA codes handled by the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service location will be processed. (D)

f. Directory Transport is provided with one of the BellSouth SWA Transport Interface Groups as set forth in Section E6. preceding. (D)

4. Special Facilities Routing

An IC may request that BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service be provided via Special Facilities Routing. The regulations, rates and charges for Special Routing (Avoidance, Diversity and Cable Only) are as set forth in Section E11. *of this Tariff*. (E)

E9. BELLSOUTH DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE ACCESS SERVICE

E9.2 Undertaking of the Company (Cont'd)

E9.2.2 Access Locations and Call Transport (Cont'd)

B. *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service will be provided between the IC terminal location and the *BellSouth* Directory Assistance *Access* service location by the Company at rates and charges as set forth in E9.5 following and as follows: (Cont'd)

5. Design Layout Report

The Company will provide to the IC the makeup of the facilities and services provided under this section as *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service. This information will be provided in the form of a Design Layout Report similar to that as set forth in E6.1.5. Design Layout Reports for *BellSouth Directory Assistance* Access service will be provided only when specifically requested by the IC. The Design Layout Report will be provided to the IC at no charge and will be reissued or updated whenever the facilities provided for the IC's use are materially changed.

6. Transmission Specifications

BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service is provided with either Type A, B or C Transmission specifications. The specifications associated with these parameters are guaranteed to the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* location, whether routed directly or via an access tandem. Type C Transmission Specification is provided with Interface Group 1 when routed directly to a *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location. Type B Transmission Specification is provided with Interface Groups 2, 6 and/or 9 when routed direct to a *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location. Type A Transmission Specification is provided with Interface Groups 2, 6 and/or 9 when routed via an access tandem switch.

When *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service is provided with *BellSouth SWA FGD* or *BellSouth SWA* TSBSA 3 service, Type A Transmission Specification is provided. When *BellSouth Directory Assistance* Access service is provided with *BellSouth SWA FGB* or *BellSouth SWA* TSBSA 1 service, Type B Transmission Specification is provided for Interface Groups 2, 6 and 9 and Type C Transmission Specification is provided for Interface Group 1. ~~When *BellSouth Directory Assistance* Access service is provided with *BellSouth SWA FGC* or *BellSouth SWA* TSBSA 2 service, Type B Transmission Specification is provided.~~

Type A, B and C Transmission Specifications are set forth in E6.4.1 preceding.

7. Acceptance Testing and Testing Capabilities

The acceptance testing and testing capabilities for *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service traffic routed through an access tandem are the same as those for the associated ~~*BellSouth SWA FGC*~~, *BellSouth SWA FGD* or *BellSouth SWA* TSBSA 2 or 3 end office switching. The acceptance testing for *BellSouth Directory Assistance* Access service traffic routed directly to or routed in a separate trunk group through an access tandem to the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location will be as set forth in E6.1.6 preceding. The testing capabilities for *BellSouth Directory Assistance* Access service traffic routed directly to the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location, or routed in a separate trunk group through an access tandem to the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location will be as set forth for cooperative scheduled testing or manual scheduled testing in Section E13. following.

C. Trunk-side switching is provided at the *BellSouth* Directory Assistance *Access* service location. The *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location will provide trunk answer and disconnect supervisory signaling.

ISSUED: December 19, 2013

ISSUED: February 14, 1997

EFFECTIVE: December 20, 2013

EFFECTIVE: March 1, 1997

BY: Marshall M. Criser III, President - FL
BY: Joseph P. Lacher, President - FL
Miami, Florida

E9. BELLSOUTH DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE ACCESS SERVICE

E9.2 Undertaking of the Company (Cont'd)

E9.2.2 Access Locations and Call Transport (Cont'd)

- D. The Company will distribute the calls received over the *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access services to the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* operators using the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location equipment. (⊕)
- E. In the event that the telephone number is unavailable to the *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access operator, no credit applies for the charge for the call to the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* operator. When the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location or *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* operator equipment or terminals are out of service due to a Company equipment failure, or an incorrect number is provided, a credit as set forth in E9.4.7 following will apply. (⊕)
- F. *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service may be provided, at the option of the IC, for interstate and intrastate communications. When the IC requests such mixed access, the intrastate *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service charges will be determined by the Company as set forth in E2.3.15. (⊕)

E9.3 Obligations of the IC

E9.3.1 Ordering Requirements

- A. The IC shall determine and order the capacity and interface type of *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access services it needs except when provided over existing *BellSouth SWA FGA*, *BellSouth SWA FGB*, ~~*BellSouth SWA FGC*~~, *BellSouth SWA FGD*, *BellSouth SWA LSBSA* or *BellSouth SWA TSBSA* Transport facilities, as specified in E9.2.2.B.3. for *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service. (⊕)
- B. The IC facilities at the IC terminal location shall provide the necessary on-hook and off-hook supervision. (D)
- C. When requested by the Company, the IC shall order a separate trunk group for *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service for each NPA. The conditions when the IC will be requested to order separate trunk groups for each NPA are set forth in E9.2.2.B. preceding. (⊕)

E9.3.2 End User Requirements

- A. When the IC bills its end users, the IC shall be responsible for all contacts and arrangements with its end users concerning the provision and maintenance of, and the billing and collecting of charges for, *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service furnished to its end users. When the Company bills the IC's end users at the request of the IC, contacts and arrangements with the IC's end users concerning the billing and collecting of charges will be as set forth in E8.2. (⊕)
- B. The IC understands that *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access Operators will respond to only two (2) telephone number requests per call and will not transfer, forward or redial the call to another location for any purpose other than the provision of *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service. (⊕)

E9.4 Payment Arrangements

E9.4.1 Minimum Periods and Minimum Monthly Charge

- A. The minimum period for which *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service is provided and for which charges apply is one month. (⊕)

E13. ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING, ADDITIONAL LABOR AND MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES

E13.3 Miscellaneous Services (Cont'd)

E13.3.5 Testing Services (Cont'd)

D. *BellSouth SWA* Service (Cont'd)

2. Additional Cooperative Acceptance Testing (Cont'd)
 - b. Additional Cooperative Acceptance Tests may, for example, consist of the following tests:
 - Impulse Noise
 - Phase Jitter
 - Signal To C-Notched Noise Ratio
 - Intermodulation (Nonlinear) Distortion
 - Frequency Shift (Offset)
 - Envelope Delay Distortion
 - Dial Pulse Percent Break
3. Automatic Scheduled Testing
 - a. Automatic Scheduled Testing (AST) of *BellSouth SWA* services (~~*BellSouth SWA FGC*~~, *BellSouth SWA FGD*, ~~*BellSouth SWA TSBSA 2*~~ and *BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3*), where the IC provides remote office test lines and 105 test lines with associated responders or their functional equivalent, will consist of monthly loss and C-message or C-notched noise tests.

However, the IC may specify a greater number of tests. In addition to the loss and noise tests, the IC may also order, at additional charges, gain-slope and balance testing.
 - b. The Company will provide a monthly AST report that lists the test results for each trunk tested.¹
4. Cooperative Scheduled Testing
 - a. Cooperative Scheduled Testing (CST) of *BellSouth SWA* services (~~*BellSouth SWA FGC*~~, *BellSouth SWA FGD*, *BellSouth SWA TSBSA 2* and *BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3* and *BellSouth Directory Assistance* Access Service not routed through an access tandem), where the Company provides a technician at its office(s) and the IC provides a technician at its terminal location(s) with suitable test equipment to perform the required tests, will consist of quarterly loss and C-message or C-notched noise tests. However, the IC may specify a greater number of tests. In addition to the loss and noise tests, the IC may also order, at additional charges, gain-slope and balance testing.
 - b. The Company will provide, on a quarterly basis, a CST report that lists the test results for each trunk tested.²
5. Manual Scheduled Testing
 - a. Manual Scheduled Testing (MST) of *BellSouth SWA* services (*BellSouth SWA FGB*, *BellSouth SWA FGD*, *BellSouth SWA TSBSA 1*, *BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3* and *BellSouth Directory Assistance* Access Service not routed through an access tandem), where the Company provides a technician at its office(s) and at the IC's terminal location, will consist of quarterly loss and C-message or C-notched noise tests. However, the IC may specify a greater number of tests. In addition to the loss and noise tests, the IC may also order, at additional charges, gain-slope and balance testing.

Note 1: Trunk test failures requiring IC participation for trouble resolution will be provided to the IC on an as-occurs basis.

BELLSOUTH
 TELECOMMUNICATIONS, INC.
 FLORIDA

ACCESS SERVICES TARIFF

Second Revised Page 6
 Cancels First Revised Page 6

ISSUED: December 19, 2013
 BY: Marshall M. Criser III, President - FL
 Miami, Florida

EFFECTIVE: December 20, 2013
 CANCELS ORIGINAL PAGE 6

E18. BELLSOUTH OPERATOR SERVICES ACCESS SERVICE

E18.1 BellSouth Inward Operator Services (Cont'd)

E18.1.6 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

B. BellSouth Inward Operator Services Installation

Rates and Charges are the same as those set forth in E6.8.1.B. of this Tariff for the access connection and options ordered.

C. BellSouth Inward Operator Services Transport

(1) Per Call

(a) All Lengths of Haul

Rate	USOC
\$.0089	NA

E18.2 BellSouth Operator Transfer Service

E18.2.1 General Description

BellSouth Operator Transfer Service provides routing of IC Operator Services calls from the Company's *BellSouth* Operator Services System location to an IC location within the Local Access Transport Area (LATA) of the IC's end user.

E18.2.2 Undertaking of the Company

- A. The Company will provide *BellSouth Operator Transfer Service* from its *BellSouth Operator Services System* location(s) as specified in the National Exchange Carrier Association, Inc., F.C.C. No. 4.
- B. The Company operator will deliver customer end user requests for transfer to the IC location in the LATA of the IC's end user subject to the rates and charges set forth in E18.2.5 following.
- C. *BellSouth Operator Transfer Service* traffic will be routed from the *BellSouth Operator Services System* location to the IC location via the IC's ~~FGC, BellSouth SWA~~ FGD, TSBSA 3 trunks.
- D. The Company will provision ~~FGC, BellSouth SWA~~ FGD, TSBSA 3 facilities as set forth in Section E6. preceding.
- E. The Company will specify the *BellSouth Operator Services System* location(s) which provide *BellSouth Operator Transfer Service* for each LATA.
 - 1. At the IC's request, the Company will provide a list of the LATAs served by each of its *BellSouth Operator Services System* locations which provide *BellSouth Operator Transfer Service*.
 - 2. When it becomes necessary, as determined by the Company, to change a *BellSouth Operator Services System* location, the Company will notify the involved ICs six months prior to the change. For such changes, the regulations as set forth in Section E2. of this Tariff apply.
- F. Appropriate rates and charges for ~~BellSouth SWA FGC, BellSouth SWA~~ FGD, TSBSA 3 service apply when such trunks are used to transport an end user's request from the *BellSouth Operator Services System* location to the IC location. In addition, charges as specified in E18.2.5 following apply to each end user request transferred to the IC.

E18. BELLSOUTH OPERATOR SERVICES ACCESS SERVICE

E18.2 BellSouth Operator Transfer Service (Cont'd)

E18.2.2 Undertaking of the Company (Cont'd)

- G. When the IC has both interstate and intrastate BellSouth Operator Transfer Service traffic, the percentage intrastate usage determined for the IC's ~~BellSouth SWA FGC~~, BellSouth SWA FGD, TSBSA 3 service as specified in Section E2. of this Tariff will be applied to the BellSouth Operator Transfer Service charges. (D)

E18.2.3 Obligations of the IC

- A. The IC will establish an IC location, if none exist, and will order ~~BellSouth SWA FGC~~, BellSouth SWA FGD, TSBSA 3 trunks, if none exist, to interconnect with the OSS location(s) serving all LATAs within the OSS serving area where the IC requests BellSouth Operator Transfer Service. (D)
- B. IC facilities at the IC location shall provide the necessary on-hook, off-hook, answer and disconnect supervision.
- C. When ordering BellSouth Operator Transfer Service, the IC shall determine and specify the number of new or additional ~~BellSouth SWA FGC~~, BellSouth SWA FGD, TSBSA 3 trunks desired, if any, to carry IC operator services end user requests from the BellSouth Operator Services System location to the IC location as specified in Section E5. of this Tariff. (D)
- D. The IC must order capacity sufficient to handle customer operator services end user requests originating from all Company end offices within each LATA of the BellSouth Operator Services System serving area where BellSouth Operator Transfer Service is requested.
- E. Jurisdictional reporting will apply as specified for ~~BellSouth SWA FGC~~, BellSouth SWA FGD, TSBSA 3 in Section E2. of this Tariff for determining the Percent Interstate Usage (PIU). (D)

E18.2.4 Rate Regulations

- A. The Operator Transfer charge is applied on a per end user request transferred basis, as set forth in E18.2.5 following. A request shall be considered transferred when the Company operator activates the BellSouth Operator Services System switch which routes the call from the BellSouth Operator Services System location to the IC location.
- B. Switched access premium rates and charges, recurring and nonrecurring, as set forth in Section E6. of this Tariff will apply to all end user requests transferred from the BellSouth Operator Services System location to the IC location via the IC's ~~BellSouth SWA FGC~~, BellSouth SWA FGD, TSBSA 3 trunks. In addition, Rate Regulations as specified in Section E6. will apply. (D)

E18.2.5 Rates and Charges

- A. End User Request for Service Transfer
1. Operator Transfer

	Rate	USOC
(a) Each	\$.35	NA

(M)

SUBJECT INDEX

B.

SUBJECT	SECTION
Balance	E2.
Basic Channelization System.....	E7.
BellSouth AIN SMS Access Service	E34.6
BellSouth AIN Toolkit Service.....	E34.7
BellSouth Billing Name and Address for ANI Service.....	E13.3
BellSouth CCS7 Access Arrangement.....	E6
BellSouth Customer Change Activity Service	E13.3
BellSouth Customer Name and Address.....	E13.3
BellSouth Dedicated Ring Service.....	E6., E7.
BellSouth Directory Assistance Access Service	E9
BellSouth Expanded Interconnection Service.....	E21
BellSouth Equal Access Subscription.....	E13.3
BellSouth Inward Operator Services.....	E18.1
(DELETED)	
BellSouth Network Visibility Service.....	E21.6
BellSouth Remote Access Service	E6.
BellSouth Resold Customer List Information	E13.
BellSouth SWA Common Transport IP Option	E6
BellSouth SWA Contract Tariffs	E26
BellSouth SWA CCSAC.....	E6
BellSouth SWA FGA.....	E6
BellSouth SWA FGB.....	E6
(DELETED)	
BellSouth SWA FGD.....	E6
BellSouth SWA Transport	E6
BellSouth SWA 500 Service.....	E6
BellSouth SWA 900 Service.....	E6
BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service.....	E6
(DELETED).	
(DELETED)	
(DELETED)	
Billing Information (Provision of Access Service)	E13.3
(DELETED)	
(DELETED)	
Bipolar with 8 Zero Substitution (B8ZS).....	E2.
Bridging (Dedicated Access Services).....	E7.

(D)

SUBJECT INDEX

F.

SUBJECT	SECTION
Facilities, Ownership of	E2.3
Feature Group A (<i>BellSouth SWA</i> FGA)	E6.2
Feature Group B (<i>BellSouth SWA</i> FGB).....	E6.2
(DELETED)	
Feature Group D (<i>BellSouth SWA</i> FGD)	E6.2

(D)

E2. GENERAL REGULATIONS¹

E2.4 Payment Arrangements and Credit Allowances (Cont'd)

E2.4.7 Title or Ownership Rights

- A. The payment of rates and charges by ICs or End Users for the services offered under the provisions of this Tariff does not assign, confer or transfer title or ownership rights to proposals or facilities developed or utilized, respectively, by the Company in the provision of such services.

E2.4.8 Billing of Access Service Provided by Multiple Companies

The Company will adhere to the standards for billing of Access Service by multiple companies that are set forth in reference documents Ordering and Billing Forum: Multiple Exchange Carrier Access Billing (MECAB) and Ordering and Billing Forum: Multiple Exchange Carrier Ordering and Design (MECOD).

A. Feature Group A (FGA) Service²

When a Feature Group A (or LSBSA)³ Switched Access Service is ordered by an IC or End User where one end of the Transport element is in the Company's operating territory and the other end is in another Exchange Telephone Company's operating territory, the Exchange Telephone Company in whose territory the FGA dial-tone office is located will accept the order. In addition, the Exchange Telephone Company in whose territory the IC's or End User's serving wire center is located must also receive a copy of the order from the IC or End User. The Exchange Telephone Company that accepts the order will then determine the charges involved, arrange to provide the Access Service ordered and bill the charges in accordance with its Access Service Tariff.

Upon agreement of the Exchange Telephone Companies involved in the provision of FGA service, the dedicated portion of FGA service (i.e., Switched Dedicated Interoffice Channel, Switched Local Channel and Channelization Equipment) will be billed in accordance with the provisions of B. and C. following. For non-dedicated portions of FGA service, including the Interconnection charge, the rates of the billing Company will apply.

B. Single Bill Arrangements

1. General

If agreed to by the Exchange Telephone Companies involved in the provision of the service, a single bill arrangement will be provided for FGB, FGD and the dedicated portions of FGA service. In the event that the Exchange Telephone Companies involved agree to change from one billing arrangement to another, the IC or End User will be notified at least 30 days prior to the effective date of such change.

(D)

2. Ordering

The IC shall place its access service request with each Exchange Telephone Company involved in the provision of the service.

3. Rating and Billing of Service

Note 1: Text is shown as new due to reissue of all Tariff Sections. No changes in rates or regulations were made with this filing.

Note 2: Except where indicated herein, references to feature groups will also include the applicable Basic Serving Arrangement (BSA) as detailed in the matrix of Section 6.1.3 of Tariff FCC No. 1 (e.g., the term FGA represents both FGA and Line Side Basic Service Arrangement (LSBSA)).

Note 3: Where LSBSA is provisioned with a DNAL, this sub-section, E2.4.8 shall also apply to the DNAL.

ISSUED: December 19, 2013

EFFECTIVE: December 20, 2013

BY: Marshall M. Criser III, President -FL
Miami, Florida

E2. GENERAL REGULATIONS¹

E2.4 Payment Arrangements and Credit Allowances (Cont'd)

E2.4.8 Billing of Access Service Provided by Multiple Companies (Cont'd)

B. Single Bill Arrangements (Cont'd)

3. Rating and Billing of Service (Cont'd)

The billing company will be as agreed to by the Exchange Telephone Companies involved in the provision of the service. The single bill arrangement may be provided under the following single bill alternatives if agreed to by such companies:

- a. The billing company will bill and collect all appropriate charges in accordance with the regulations, rates and charges in its Access Service Tariff, or
- b. The billing company will bill and collect all appropriate charges in accordance with the rates and charges in its access tariff, for the portion of the service it provides, and in accordance with the rates and charges of the access tariffs of the other Exchange Telephone Companies involved, for the portion of the service which they provide. The Interconnection charge of the end office Telephone Company will apply. The bill will separately identify each company's rates and charges, or
- c. The billing company will bill and collect all appropriate charges in accordance with the rates and charges in the access tariffs of the other involved Exchange Telephone Companies, as forwarded to it by such companies for the portion of the service they provide, and in accordance with the rates and charges in its own access tariff for the portion of the service it provides. The Interconnection charge of the end office Telephone Company will apply. The bill will separately identify each company's rates and charges.

For b. and c. preceding, the charges billed for the portion of service provided by this Company are determined as set forth in C.3.a., b. and c. following. For nonrecurring charges, 100 percent of this Company's charge shall apply.

C. Multiple Bill Arrangements

1. General

Separate bills will be rendered by the Exchange Telephone Companies for FGB², and FGD the dedicated portions of FGA Access Service if the administration of a single bill arrangement, as set forth in B. preceding, is not agreed upon by the companies involved. In the event that the Exchange Telephone Companies involved agree to change from one billing arrangement to another, the IC or End User will be notified at least 30 days prior to the effective date of such change. (D)

2. Ordering

The IC shall place its access service request with each Exchange Telephone Company involved in the provision of the service.

3. Rating and Billing of Service

Note 1: Text is shown as new due to reissue of all Tariff Sections. No changes in rates or regulations were made with this filing.

Note 2: Except where indicated herein, references to feature groups will also include the applicable Basic Serving Arrangement (BSA) as detailed in the matrix of Section 6.1.3 of Tariff FCC No. 1 (e.g., the term FGA represents both FGA and Line Side Basic Service Arrangement (LSBSA)).

E3. CARRIER COMMON LINE ACCESS

E3.5 Payment Arrangements (Cont'd)

- B. (Cont'd)
 - 2. 0.000590 per day, compounded daily for the number of days from the payment date to and including the date that the IC actually makes the payment to the Company.
- C. In the event a billing dispute concerning a month's Carrier Common Line Access billed to the IC by the Company is resolved in favor of the Company, any payments withheld pending settlement of the dispute shall be subject to the late payment penalty set forth in B. preceding. If the IC disputes the bill on or before the payment date, and pays the undisputed amount on or before the payment date, any late payment charge for the disputed amount will not start until 10 days after the payment date. If the billing dispute is resolved in favor of the IC, no late payment will apply to the disputed amount. In addition, if the IC disputes the billed amount and pays the total amount (i.e., the non-disputed amount and the disputed amount) on or before the payment date and the billing dispute is resolved in the favor of the IC, the IC will receive a credit for a disputed amount penalty from the billing entity if the billing dispute is not resolved within 10 working days following the payment date or the date the IC furnishes to the billing entity documentation to support its claim plus 10 working days, whichever date is the later date. The disputed amount penalty shall be the disputed amount resolved in the IC's favor times a penalty factor.

E3.6 Determination of Usage Subject to Carrier Common Line Access Charges

Except as set forth herein, all *BellSouth SWA* service provided to the IC will be subject to Carrier Common Line Access Charges.

- A. When the IC reports interstate and intrastate use of *BellSouth SWA* service, the associated Carrier Common Line Access used by the IC for intrastate use will be determined as set forth in E3.9 following.
- B.
- C. When access to the local exchange is required to provide an IC Service that uses service (e.g. MTS/WATS-type, telex, data, etc.) a resold Private Line Service, *BellSouth SWA FG* service rates and regulations, as set forth in E6.7 following will apply. Carrier Common Line Access rates and charges as set forth in E3.10 following apply in accordance with the resale rate regulations as set forth in E3.7 following.

E3.7 Resold Services

- A. Where the IC is reselling MTS or MTS-type service(s) on which the Carrier Common Line and *BellSouth SWA* charges have been assessed, the IC may, at the option of the IC, obtain *BellSouth SWA FGA*, *BellSouth SWA FGB*, *BellSouth SWA FGD*, *BellSouth SWA LSBSA* or *BellSouth SWA TSBSA 1 or 3 BellSouth SWA FG* service under this Tariff as set forth in Section E6. following for originating and/or terminating access in the local exchange. Such access group arrangements, whether single lines or trunks or multiline hunt groups or trunk groups, will have Carrier Common Line Access Charges applied as set forth in E3.10 following in accordance with the resale rate regulations set forth in this Section. For purposes of administering this provision:

(D)
|
(D)

ISSUED: December 19, 2013

EFFECTIVE: December 20, 2013

BY: Marshall M. Criser III, President -FL
Miami, Florida

E3. CARRIER COMMON LINE ACCESS

E3.9 Rate Regulations

A. The Carrier Common Line Charges will be billed to each BellSouth SWA service provided under this Tariff in accordance with the regulations as set forth following except as set forth in E3.7.D preceding and D. following.

B.

C. When Carrier Common Line Access Service is provided in association with BellSouth SWA FGA, BellSouth SWA FGB, BellSouth SWA LSBSA and BellSouth SWA TSBSA 1 BellSouth SWA service in an end office not converted to equal access, in Company end offices that are not equipped for measurement capabilities, an assumed average access minutes will be used to determine the Carrier Common Line charges. The assumed average access minutes are as set forth in E6.7.8 following.

D. When the IC orders line side BellSouth SWA as set forth in E6.7.3. following and reports the data as set forth in E3.4.F. preceding and in E6.7.3. following, the IC monthly Carrier Common Line Charge access minutes will be adjusted as follows:

1. For the first month both the BellSouth SWA service and the resold Dedicated Access Line Service provided under this Tariff are in service in the same state in the same LATA and provided by the same Company, the Carrier Common Line Access originating access minutes for the IC LATA account or End Office account involved, whichever type of account is used by the billing entity, will be adjusted as follows. After the billing entity verifies that the number of Dedicated Access Line Services in service as reported by the IC is accurate, the Carrier Common Line Access originating access minutes developed for the IC account involved will be reduced by the amount of minutes associated with resold Dedicated Access Line Services reported as set forth in E3.4.F. preceding and E6.7.3. following for line side BellSouth SWA service. The adjustment will be made to the involved IC account no later than either the next bill date, or the one subsequent to that, depending on when the report is received.

(D)
|
(D)

ISSUED: December 19, 2013

EFFECTIVE: December 20, 2013

BY: Marshall M. Criser III, President -FL
Miami, Florida

E3. CARRIER COMMON LINE ACCESS

E3.9 Rate Regulations (Cont'd)

G. After the adjustments as set forth in E3.7.D. and D. preceding have been applied, when necessary, to the BellSouth SWA service access minutes, the charges for the involved customer account will be determined as follows: (Cont'd)

3. Terminating access per minute charge(s) apply to: (Cont'd)

- all originating access minutes of use associated with BellSouth SWA FGA and BellSouth SWA LSBSA services where the off-hook supervisory signaling is forwarded by the customer's equipment when the called party answers;
- all originating access minutes of use associated with calls placed to 700, 800 and 900 numbers, less the percentage of originating access minutes of use reported by the customer, as set forth following, that are associated with calls placed to 700, 800 and 900 numbers that terminate in a BellSouth SWA service that is assessed Carrier Common Line Access Service charges.

For originating access minutes of use associated with calls placed to 700, 800 and 900 numbers which terminate on a BellSouth SWA service assessed Carrier Common Line Access Service charges, the customer shall report as follows: On or before the fifteenth day of each March, June, September and December the customer shall provide the Company a report of the percentage of total interstate 700, 800 and 900 originating minutes of use that will terminate in a BellSouth SWA service that is assessed Carrier Common Line Access Service charges for the forthcoming quarter. The reported percentage will be used by the Company to determine the customer's current monthly bill for the originating minutes of use for which the report was provided as set forth in 5. following. The customer reported percentage should reflect any under or over estimate in the prior quarter. In the event the customer does not supply a report, the Company will assume the percentage to be the same as that provided in the previous quarterly report.

If a dispute arises concerning the customer provided quarterly percentage report, the Company may request the customer to provide the data the customer used to determine the percentage. The customer shall retain for twelve (12) months call detail records from which the reported percentage credit can be ascertained. Upon request of the Company, the customer shall make records available for inspection as reasonably necessary for purposes of verification of the percentages and shall supply the data within 30 days of the Company's request. The Company will not request such data more than twice a year.

H. The originating premium access per minute charge(s) apply to all originating access minutes of use: (D)

- less those originating access minutes of use associated with BellSouth SWA FGA and BellSouth SWA LSBSA services where off-hook supervisory signaling is forwarded by the customer's equipment when the called party answers;
- less all originating access minutes of use associated with calls placed to 700, 800, and 900 numbers;
- plus all originating access minutes of use associated with calls placed to 700, 800, and 900 numbers for which the customer furnishes a report of the percentage of minutes that terminate in a BellSouth SWA service that is assessed Carrier Common Line Access Service charges, and for which a corresponding reduction in the number of terminating access minutes of use has been made as set forth in G. preceding.

I. (DELETED)

E5. ORDERING OPTIONS FOR ACCESS SERVICES

E5.1 General (Cont'd)

E5.1.2 Ordering Conditions (Cont'd)

- E.** BellSouth SWA Service orders for BellSouth SWA FGB, BellSouth SWA FGD and BellSouth SWA TSBSA 1 and 3 shall be in trunks.
- F.** Dedicated Access Line service must be ordered in lines for use with a BellSouth SWA FGD and BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 service which is in service or on order.
- G.** The day upon which the customer has provided to BellSouth a firm commitment for the service and complete and accurate information to allow for the processing of the Access Order *by three o'clock p.m. Eastern Standard Time (EST)*¹ is the Application Date. BellSouth will release an optional initial Pending Order Confirmation, which will include the BellSouth order number and circuit identification. At the customer's request, when BellSouth facility availability is verified, either a Firm Order Confirmation, which will include critical date information, or a Design and Ordering Confirmation, which will include design as well as critical date information, will be released. Critical date information will include the Service Date. The Service Date is the date service is to be made available to the customer and billing will commence.
A Pending Order Confirmation is available for orders for BellSouth-provided switched access dedicated transport services, where ordered separately from other switched access services, and for BellSouth-provided special access services. A Design and Ordering Confirmation is not available for orders submitted by end users. A Pending Order Confirmation and a Design and Ordering Confirmation are not available on orders for services provided jointly with another exchange telephone company.
- H.** The time required to provision the service (i.e., the interval between the Application Date and the Service Date) is known as the service interval. Such intervals will be established in accordance with published service date interval guidelines which are available to ICs and End Users upon request, whether the IC's service is subject to standard or negotiated intervals. The IC or End User may request a service date other than that established pursuant to the service date interval guidelines, and the Company, where possible, will establish the service date in accordance with such request, subject, however, to other applicable provisions of this Tariff.
- I.** The following charges will apply for the installation, move or rearrangement of BellSouth SWA or Special Access (a.k.a. BellSouth SPA) service orders with an agreed upon service date interval of four business days or less following the Application Date of the order. These charges are in addition to other applicable BellSouth SWA or Special Access (a.k.a. BellSouth SPA) nonrecurring charges for installations, moves or rearrangements of service. These charges will not apply to services provided on a Special Services Arrangement or on an Individual Case Basis, or in the event the agreed upon Service Date, as set forth preceding, is not met, or at the request of the customer to convert from a lower to higher order of service as provided for in E2.4.9A in this Tariff.
 1. Per Service Order

Nonrecurring

	Charge	USOC
(a) Special Access (a.k.a. BellSouth SPA)	\$365.00	SOCSP
(b) BellSouth SWA	300.00	SOCSW

- J.** An IC or End User who initiates a conversion (rollover) of a BellSouth SWA DS1 to a BellSouth SWA DS3 High Capacity service is also responsible for submitting Network Channel Interface (NCI) Code Update requests, either mechanically or manually, on all sub-DS1 level circuits that ride the channelized BellSouth SWA DS1 High Capacity service being rolled over. The Company and the IC or End User will work cooperatively to establish the number of circuits which may be submitted monthly for purposes of mechanical NCI Code updates associated with rollovers of BellSouth SWA FG DS1 High Capacity service to BellSouth SWA DS3 High Capacity service.
- K.** An IC who converts from an existing feature group service to an equivalent unbundled service (i.e., BellSouth SWA FGA to BellSouth SWA LSBSA, BellSouth SWA FGB to BellSouth SWA TSBSA 1 and BellSouth SWA FGD to BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3) shall do so on no lower than an end office level. The Company and the IC will work cooperatively to accomplish these conversions.

E5.1.3 Provision of Other Services

- A.** Testing Service, Additional Labor and Special Facilities Routing shall be ordered with an Access Order as set forth in B. following. The rates and charges for these services, as set forth in other sections of this Tariff, will apply in addition to the ordering charges set forth in this section and the rates and charges for the Access Service with which they are associated.

Note 1: Access Orders received after three o'clock p.m. EST will be processed the next business day, which will be the Application Date.

E5. ORDERING OPTIONS FOR ACCESS SERVICES

E5.2 Access Order (Cont'd)

E5.2.1 Provision of Service (Cont'd)

B. Information Required (Cont'd)

3. For BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 service, the IC shall specify: (D)
 - a. The number of BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 trunks
 - (1) for trunks ordered to an end office, the end office
 - (2) for trunks ordered to an Access Tandem, the Access Tandem Switch
 - (3) for trunks with coin sent-paid capability ordered to a TOPS tandem, the TOPS Tandem Switch
 - (4) an estimate of the amount of traffic it will generate to and/or from each end office subtending the access and/or TOPS tandem (to assist the Company in its own efforts to project further facility requirements).
 - b. BellSouth SWA Transport Options, if any
 - c. Local Switching Options (including BSEs), if any
 - d. The traffic type using the categories specified in Section 6.1.1 of Tariff FCC No. 1 to enable efficient provisions and billing functions.
 - e. Provide Connecting Facility Assignment (CFA), if associated with a high capacity facility
 - f. For BellSouth SWA Local Channel and Switched Dedicated Interoffice Channel, the capacity
The coin capable end offices and TOPS tandem switches are identified in the Wire Center Section of the NECA No. 4 Tariff.
4. For BellSouth SWA FGD and BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 with BellSouth SWA CCSAC in addition to the information listed in 3. preceding, the IC shall provide: a reference to existing signaling connections or reference to a related BellSouth SWA CCSAC signaling connection order; BellSouth SWA CCSAC Local Switching options, if any; for BellSouth CCS7 Signaling Connections, STP point codes and location identifier codes, circuit identification codes and switch type; and, for BellSouth CCS7 Signaling Connections, specification of the level of diversity in its network, as defined in the BellSouth Guidelines to Technical Publication TR-TSV-000905.
Service Installation Guarantees, as set forth in E2.4.10 of this Tariff, are not applicable for the installations of CCSAC signaling.
For BellSouth SWA FGD and BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 with 64 Clear Channel Capability (CCC), in addition to the information listed in 3. and 4. preceding, the IC shall specify 64 CCC Local Switching Options, if any.
5. When ordering Operator Transfer Service, the IC shall specify the number of new or additional BellSouth SWA FGD, BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 Trunks desired, if any, to carry originating traffic from the Operator Services System location to the IC location in each LATA served by the Operator Services System where the IC requests Operator Transfer Service. (D) (D)
6. For BellSouth Inward Operator Services (IOS) Access Service, the IC shall specify:
 - a. For trunks to an IOS location
 - (1) The IOS location
7. For BellSouth *SWA Common Transport IP Option*, the IC shall specify:
 - a. An estimate of the amount of traffic it will generate to each access tandem stated in minutes of use.

E5. ORDERING OPTIONS FOR ACCESS SERVICES

E5.2 Access Order (Cont'd)

E5.2.1 Provision of Service (Cont'd)

B. Information Required (Cont'd)

6. For Inward BellSouth Operator Services (IOS) Access Service, the IC shall specify: (Cont'd)
 - a. For trunks to an IOS location (Cont'd)
 - (2) The number of trunks required to carry the IC's IOS traffic to the IOS location specified in (1) preceding.

C. Traffic Engineering Responsibilities

1. The IC is responsible to assure that sufficient access facilities have been ordered to handle its traffic.
2. When ordering BellSouth SWA service, the trunks may be determined by the IC in the following manner. For each day the IC shall determine the highest number of trunks in use for a single hour. The IC shall, for the same hour period (i.e., busy hour), pick the twenty consecutive business days in a calendar year which add up to the largest number of trunks in use. The IC shall then determine the average busy hour trunks by dividing the largest number of trunks in use figure, for the same hour period, for the twenty consecutive business day period by 20. This computation shall be performed for each end office and/or access tandem the IC wishes to serve.
3. If data to develop a twenty-consecutive day period is not available, the IC may use a twenty day period that contains as many consecutive days as is available.
4. When an IC desires BellSouth SWA service to an end office that is a remote switching office, the IC must order to the host office which controls the remote switching office since all traffic to and/or from a remote switching office must be routed through the host office.
5. When ordering Dedicated Access Services from this Tariff, the IC or End User must provide a Percent Interstate Usage (PIU) of 0 percent. The jurisdiction will be determined as set forth in E2.3.14.A.9 *of this Tariff*.
6. When ordering Dedicated Access Line Service from this Tariff, the IC must provide a Percent Interstate Usage (PIU) of 0 percent. The jurisdiction will be determined as set forth in E2.3.14.A.9 *of this Tariff*.
7. For all access services ordered by an IC, proof of certification by the Florida Public Service Commission must be provided by the IC to the Company in accordance with the provisions in E2.3 *of this Tariff*.

D. Determination of CCS7 Signaling Connections and Terminations

The customer shall work cooperatively with the Company to determine the number of CCS7 Signaling Connections and CCS7 Signaling Terminations required to handle its signaling traffic.

E. BellSouth SWA 500 Service

For BellSouth SWA 500 service, as described in Section 6.2 of Tariff FCC No. 1 the IC shall order in the same manner which is set forth preceding for ordering BellSouth SWA FGD, BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 except that ICs must order BellSouth SWA FGD, BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 to all end offices within the IC designated LATA(s), either through the tandem or by direct connections to the end office.

(D)

(D)

The IC is also responsible for reporting to the Company the percent interstate usage (PIU) for BellSouth SWA 500 service as set forth in E2.3.14 *of this Tariff*.

E5. ORDERING OPTIONS FOR ACCESS SERVICES

E5.2 Access Order (Cont'd)

E5.2.1 Provision of Service (Cont'd)

F. BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service

For BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service as described in Section 6.2.5 of Tariff FCC No. 1, the IC shall order in the same manner which is set forth preceding for ordering BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 except that the IC must order BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3 to all access tandems or direct connections to all end offices designated by the Company as Service Switching Points for BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service within the LATA. Direct trunk routes cannot be provided unless the end office is equipped to provide the IC identification function. All traffic originating from end offices not equipped to provide the IC identification function require routing via the serving access tandem at which the function is available. Service must be ordered accordingly.

The IC is also responsible for reporting to the Company the percent interstate usage (PIU) for BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service as set forth in E2.3.14 *of this Tariff*.

G. BellSouth 8XX Toll Free Dialing Number Administration Service

When ordering BellSouth 8XX Toll Free Dialing Number Administration service as described in E13.3.12 *of this Tariff*, the IC must, at a minimum, provide the following information to the Company:

- Area of service¹
- Name(s) of intraLATA and interLATA carrier(s), as applicable
- Access Carrier Name Abbreviation (ACNA) Code of the interLATA and intraLATA carrier, as applicable
- Activation date

When the POTS number is to be delivered to an IC, the IC must provide the full 10-digit POTS number to be associated with the 800 number and must indicate to whom the POTS number is to be delivered. In addition, the IC must also provide the POTS numbers associated with the intraLATA portion of BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service for subscribers who will use the Company for intraLATA BellSouth SWA 8XX Toll Free Dialing Ten Digit Screening Service.

For the transport of any intraLATA 800 call by the Company, the IC must provide the end user billing information necessary for the Company to bill the appropriate intraLATA rates.

If the IC desires any of the options available with BellSouth 8XX Toll Free Dialing Number Administration Service as set forth in E13.3.12 *of this Tariff*, these must also be specified on the order for service.

H. BellSouth Directory Assistance Service

For BellSouth Directory Assistance service, the IC shall specify the number of trunks from the IC premises to the Directory Assistance location. Unless direct routing is specified by the IC, BellSouth Directory Assistance service will be provided with BellSouth SWA FGB, BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA service. The IC shall also specify which BellSouth SWA FGB, BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA service trunk group is to be associated with the BellSouth Directory Assistance service. (D)

Note 1 : The standard area of service is the entire state. Other levels of area of service may be provided with the Customized Area of Service feature. (D)

E6. BELLSOUTH SWA SERVICE

CONTENTS

E6.1	General	1	(D)
E6.2	Provision and Description of BellSouth SWA Service Arrangements	1	(D)
E6.4	Transmission Specifications	3	(M)(C)
E6.7	Rate Regulations	5	(M)(C)
E6.8	Rates and Charges	7	(M)(C)

Material appearing on this page previously appeared on Revised Pages 2, 3 and 4.

BELLSOUTH
TELECOMMUNICATIONS
FLORIDA

ACCESS SERVICES TARIFF

Third Revised Page 2
Cancels Second Revised Page 2

ISSUED: December 19, 2013
BY: Marshall M. Criser III, President -FL
Miami, Florida

EFFECTIVE: December 20, 2013

(D)

(D)

Material previously appeared on this page now appears on Ninth revised Page 1.

BELLSOUTH
TELECOMMUNICATIONS
FLORIDA

ACCESS SERVICES TARIFF

Fifth Revised Page 3
Cancels Fourth Revised Page 3

ISSUED: December 19, 2013
BY: Marshall M. Criser III, President -FL
Miami, Florida

EFFECTIVE: December 20, 2013

(D)

(D)

Material previously appeared on this page now appears on Ninth revised Page 1.

BELLSOUTH
TELECOMMUNICATIONS
FLORIDA

ACCESS SERVICES TARIFF

Eighth Revised Page 4
Cancels Seventh Revised Page 4

ISSUED: December 19, 2013
BY: Marshall M. Criser III, President -FL
Miami, Florida

EFFECTIVE: December 20, 2013

(D)

(D)

Material previously appeared on this page now appears on Ninth revised Page 1.

ISSUED: December 19, 2013

EFFECTIVE: December 20, 2013

BY: Marshall M. Criser III, President -FL
Miami, Florida

E6. BELLSOUTH SWA SERVICE

E 6.7 Rate Regulations (Cont'd)

E6.7.3 BellSouth SWA Service for Resale of Other IC Service (Con'td)

3. When both line side (i.e., **BellSouth SWA** FGA and **BellSouth SWA** LSBSA) and trunk side (i.e., **BellSouth SWA** FGB, **BellSouth SWA** FGD and **BellSouth SWA** TSBSA) **BellSouth SWA** service are used in association with the resale of WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) service, the number of WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) services to be associated with each line side or trunk side **BellSouth SWA** service. If this split is not reported, the Company will assume all the WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) services are to be associated with line side **BellSouth SWA** service. (D)

The preceding information and the information required in B. following must be reported for each LATA in which the IC is reselling services. For those LATAs that are multistate LATAs, the IC must report the information by state within the LATA. In order for the rate treatment in D. following to apply, both this **BellSouth SWA** service and the associated WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) services must be in the same state and be provided by the same Company.

- B. Each of the **BellSouth SWA** services used by the IC in association with the resale of WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) service must be in the same LATA as the WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) services in order for such **BellSouth SWA** service to be rated as set forth in D. following. The **BellSouth SWA** service must also be connected either directly or indirectly to the IC terminal location at which the associated WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) services are terminated. Direct connections are those where the **BellSouth SWA** service is terminated at the same IC terminal location. Indirect connections are those where the **BellSouth SWA** service is terminated at a second IC terminal location in the same LATA, which is in turn connected to the first IC terminal location by facilities that can be used by the **BellSouth SWA** service to reach the first IC terminal location (i.e., the IC terminal location where the WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) services are terminated). When more than one IC terminal location is involved in a LATA, the IC shall notify the Company in writing and shall report the locations of the involved IC terminal locations.
- C. For the initial month, the data that the IC reports as set forth in A. and B. preceding will be used by the Company to determine the rates and charges as set forth in D. following. For each subsequent month, the IC must update the report per A. and B. preceding for each LATA for the preceding monthly period. The report shall be delivered to the Company, at a location specified by the Company, no later than 15 days after the bill date shown on the WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) services bill. If an updated report is required but is not received by the Company during the monthly period after the initial monthly period, the Company will assume there are no resold WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) services associated with **BellSouth SWA** services in the LATA. The rate treatment set forth in D. following will not apply in these cases.
- D. When the IC reports **BellSouth SWA** services associated with the resale of WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) services in a LATA as set forth in A., B. and C. preceding, and the Company verifies the reports are accurate, such **BellSouth SWA** services will be rated as follows:
 1. For line side **BellSouth SWA** services (i.e., **BellSouth SWA** FGA and **BellSouth SWA** LSBSA) in a LATA associated with the resale of WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) services, the LATA access minutes used to determine the charges for **BellSouth SWA** Transport, Local Switching (LS1 and LS3) and Line Termination will be reduced by the total number of minutes each WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) service reported by the IC as set forth in A., B. or C. preceding. However, the access minutes for the line side **BellSouth SWA** services in the LATA, adjusted as set forth in this or any other section of this Tariff, that are billed to an IC in a monthly period shall not be less than zero. The adjustment will be made to the involved IC account no later than either the next bill date, or the one subsequent to that, depending on when the report is received.
- E. When the IC notifies the Company that **BellSouth SWA** services is to be used in association with the resale of WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) service, the notification automatically grants the Company the right to audit (1) the IC terminal locations to verify the use of facilities as reported in A., B. or C. preceding, and (2) all of the records, work papers and back up documentation for each report as set forth in A., B. or C. preceding. The Company also has the right to contact and review the records of other involved entities to verify the data the IC reports is accurate.

All of the records, work paper and backup documentation for each report furnished the Company as set forth in A., B. or C. preceding shall be available (for one year from the date of the report) during normal business hours at an IC location in the involved LATA, upon reasonable request by the Company, in order to permit a review by the Company auditor or outside auditor under contract to the Company. If the records, work papers and backup documentation are not provided or are insufficient or not in accordance with the provision of this paragraph and A., B. and C. preceding, the adjustments and rates as set forth in D. preceding shall not apply until the deficiencies are corrected and new reports as required in A., B. and C. preceding are delivered to the Company.
- F. When the IC reports line side **BellSouth SWA** services associated with the resale of WATS Access Line (*a.k.a.* **BellSouth SPA WATS Line**) service in a LATA, as set forth in A., B. or C. preceding, the regulations set forth in E3.7.D preceding shall apply.

E9. BELLSOUTH DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE ACCESS SERVICE

E9.2 Undertaking of the Company (Cont'd)

E9.2.2 Access Locations and Call Transport (Cont'd)

B. BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service will be provided between the IC terminal location and the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service location by the Company at rates and charges as set forth in E9.5 following and as follows: (Cont'd)

3. Directory Transport (Cont'd)

c. Directory Transport facilities are specified by the IC and include the following rate categories. These rate categories are further defined in Section E6. *of this Tariff*, BellSouth SWA service. (Cont'd)

(2) Switched Interoffice Channel, either Common or Dedicated must be specified by the IC.

Switched Dedicated Interoffice Channels (SW DIOC) are used for the transport of the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service call to the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access location without utilizing a Company Access Tandem Switch or for the transport of the call to the Access Tandem where *an* Access Tandem *is utilized*. The SW DIOC is assessed a monthly rate, per mile, based on the capacity ordered by the IC.

Where a Company Access Tandem is utilized, Switched Common Interoffice Channels (SW CIOC) are used for the transport of the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service call from the Company Access Tandem Switch *to the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access Location*. The SW CIOC charge is assessed on a per call basis.

For BellSouth SWA Common Transport, the DS3 to DS1 Multiplexer element is applicable. This element provides for use of DS3 to DS1 multiplexer equipment between the Company Access Tandem switch and the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access Location.

(3) Access Tandem Switching provides for the function of the Access Tandem when routing the call from the IC's SWC to the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access location through the Access Tandem. A rate per call will be assessed for each BellSouth Directory Assistance Access call that traverses the Access Tandem.

d. As specified by the IC, BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service is to be routed directly to a BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service location or through an access tandem switch appropriately equipped for BellSouth Directory Assistance Access measurement and served by BellSouth Directory Assistance Access trunks to the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access location when such an access tandem switch is available in combination with BellSouth SWA FGB, BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA as a separate BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service Trunk Group. The combination of BellSouth SWA FGB, BellSouth SWA FGD or BellSouth SWA TSBSA service with BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service will only be provided at such available and appropriately equipped access tandem switches. All BellSouth Directory Assistance Access calls routed via this combination to the access tandem will be completed to the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access location and subject to the charges set forth in E9.5 following. If the IC does not want BellSouth Directory Assistance Access calls completed to the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access location via this combination, the IC may block the call. (D)

e. When Directory Transport is provided, multifrequency address signaling is required with wink start-start pulsing signals provided. The IC shall address each call to the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service location using NPA+555+1212 or when required by the Company, 555-1212. Only NPA codes handled by the BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service location will be processed. (D)

f. Directory Transport is provided with one of the BellSouth SWA Transport Interface Groups as set forth in Section E6. preceding. (D)

4. Special Facilities Routing

An IC may request that BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service be provided via Special Facilities Routing. The regulations, rates and charges for Special Routing (Avoidance, Diversity and Cable Only) are as set forth in Section E11. *of this Tariff*.

E9. BELLSOUTH DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE ACCESS SERVICE

E9.2 Undertaking of the Company (Cont'd)

E9.2.2 Access Locations and Call Transport (Cont'd)

- B.** *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service will be provided between the IC terminal location and the *BellSouth* Directory Assistance *Access* service location by the Company at rates and charges as set forth in E9.5 following and as follows: (Cont'd)

5. Design Layout Report

The Company will provide to the IC the makeup of the facilities and services provided under this section as *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service. This information will be provided in the form of a Design Layout Report similar to that as set forth in E6.1.5. Design Layout Reports for *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service will be provided only when specifically requested by the IC. The Design Layout Report will be provided to the IC at no charge and will be reissued or updated whenever the facilities provided for the IC's use are materially changed.

6. Transmission Specifications

BellSouth Directory Assistance Access service is provided with either Type A, B or C Transmission specifications. The specifications associated with these parameters are guaranteed to the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* location, whether routed directly or via an access tandem. Type C Transmission Specification is provided with Interface Group 1 when routed directly to a *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location. Type B Transmission Specification is provided with Interface Groups 2, 6 and/or 9 when routed direct to a *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location. Type A Transmission Specification is provided with Interface Groups 2, 6 and/or 9 when routed via an access tandem switch.

When *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service is provided with *BellSouth SWA FGD* or *BellSouth SWA* TSBSA 3 service, Type A Transmission Specification is provided. When *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service is provided with *BellSouth SWA FGB* or *BellSouth SWA* TSBSA 1 service, Type B Transmission Specification is provided for Interface Groups 2, 6 and 9 and Type C Transmission Specification is provided for Interface Group 1. (D)

Type A, B and C Transmission Specifications are set forth in E6.4.1 preceding. (D)

7. Acceptance Testing and Testing Capabilities

The acceptance testing and testing capabilities for *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service traffic routed through an access tandem are the same as those for the associated *BellSouth SWA FGD* or *BellSouth SWA* TSBSA 3 end office switching. The acceptance testing for *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service traffic routed directly to or routed in a separate trunk group through an access tandem to the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location will be as set forth in E6.1.6 preceding. The testing capabilities for *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service traffic routed directly to the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location, or routed in a separate trunk group through an access tandem to the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location will be as set forth for cooperative scheduled testing or manual scheduled testing in Section E13. following. (D)

- C.** Trunk-side switching is provided at the *BellSouth* Directory Assistance *Access* service location. The *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location will provide trunk answer and disconnect supervisory signaling.

E9. BELLSOUTH DIRECTORY ASSISTANCE ACCESS SERVICE

E9.2 Undertaking of the Company (Cont'd)

E9.2.2 Access Locations and Call Transport (Cont'd)

- D. The Company will distribute the calls received over the *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access services to the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* operators using the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location equipment.
- E. In the event that the telephone number is unavailable to the *BellSouth* Directory Assistance *Access* operator, no credit applies for the charge for the call to the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* operator. When the *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service location or *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* operator equipment or terminals are out of service due to a Company equipment failure, or an incorrect number is provided, a credit as set forth in E9.4.7 following will apply.
- F. *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service may be provided, at the option of the IC, for interstate and intrastate communications. When the IC requests such mixed access, the intrastate *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service charges will be determined by the Company as set forth in E2.3.15.

E9.3 Obligations of the IC

E9.3.1 Ordering Requirements

- A. The IC shall determine and order the capacity and interface type of *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access services it needs except when provided over existing *BellSouth SWA FGA*, *BellSouth SWA FGB*, *BellSouth SWA FGD*, *BellSouth SWA LSBSA* or *BellSouth SWA TSBSA* Transport facilities, as specified in E9.2.2.B.3. for *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service. (D)
- B. The IC facilities at the IC terminal location shall provide the necessary on-hook and off-hook supervision.
- C. When requested by the Company, the IC shall order a separate trunk group for *BellSouth Directory Assistance Access* service for each NPA. The conditions when the IC will be requested to order separate trunk groups for each NPA are set forth in E9.2.2.B. preceding.

E9.3.2 End User Requirements

- A. When the IC bills its end users, the IC shall be responsible for all contacts and arrangements with its end users concerning the provision and maintenance of, and the billing and collecting of charges for, *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service furnished to its end users. When the Company bills the IC's end users at the request of the IC, contacts and arrangements with the IC's end users concerning the billing and collecting of charges will be as set forth in E8.2.
- B. The IC understands that *BellSouth* Directory Assistance *Access* Operators will respond to only two (2) telephone number requests per call and will not transfer, forward or redial the call to another location for any purpose other than the provision of *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service.

E9.4 Payment Arrangements

E9.4.1 Minimum Periods and Minimum Monthly Charge

- A. The minimum period for which *BellSouth* Directory Assistance Access service is provided and for which charges apply is one month.

E13. ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING, ADDITIONAL LABOR AND MISCELLANEOUS CHARGES

E13.3 Miscellaneous Services (Cont'd)

E13.3.5 Testing Services (Cont'd)

D. *BellSouth SWA* Service (Cont'd)

2. Additional Cooperative Acceptance Testing (Cont'd)
 - b. Additional Cooperative Acceptance Tests may, for example, consist of the following tests:
 - Impulse Noise
 - Phase Jitter
 - Signal To C-Notched Noise Ratio
 - Intermodulation (Nonlinear) Distortion
 - Frequency Shift (Offset)
 - Envelope Delay Distortion
 - Dial Pulse Percent Break
3. Automatic Scheduled Testing
 - a. Automatic Scheduled Testing (AST) of *BellSouth SWA* services (*BellSouth SWA FGD* and *BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3*), where the IC provides remote office test lines and 105 test lines with associated responders or their functional equivalent, will consist of monthly loss and C-message or C-notched noise tests. (D)

However, the IC may specify a greater number of tests. In addition to the loss and noise tests, the IC may also order, at additional charges, gain-slope and balance testing.
 - b. The Company will provide a monthly AST report that lists the test results for each trunk tested.¹
4. Cooperative Scheduled Testing a. Cooperative Scheduled Testing (CST) of *BellSouth SWA* services (*BellSouth SWA FGD* and *BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3* and *BellSouth Directory Assistance* Access Service not routed through an access tandem), where the Company provides a technician at its office(s) and the IC provides a technician at its terminal location(s) with suitable test equipment to perform the required tests, will consist of quarterly loss and C-message or C-notched noise tests. However, the IC may specify a greater number of tests. In addition to the loss and noise tests, the IC may also order, at additional charges, gain-slope and balance testing. (D)
 - b. The Company will provide, on a quarterly basis, a CST report that lists the test results for each trunk tested.²
5. Manual Scheduled Testing
 - a. Manual Scheduled Testing (MST) of *BellSouth SWA* services (*BellSouth SWA FGB*, *BellSouth SWA FGD*, *BellSouth SWA TSBSA 1*, *BellSouth SWA TSBSA 3* and *BellSouth Directory Assistance* Access Service not routed through an access tandem), where the Company provides a technician at its office(s) and at the IC's terminal location, will consist of quarterly loss and C-message or C-notched noise tests. However, the IC may specify a greater number of tests. In addition to the loss and noise tests, the IC may also order, at additional charges, gain-slope and balance testing.

Note 1: Trunk test failures requiring IC participation for trouble resolution will be provided to the IC on an as-occurs basis.

E18. BELLSOUTH OPERATOR SERVICES ACCESS SERVICE

E18.1 BellSouth Inward Operator Services (Cont'd)

E18.1.6 Rates and Charges (Cont'd)

B. BellSouth Inward Operator Services Installation

Rates and Charges are the same as those set forth in E6.8.1.B. of this Tariff for the access connection and options ordered.

C. BellSouth Inward Operator Services Transport

(1) Per Call

(a) All Lengths of Haul

Rate	USOC
\$.0089	NA

E18.2 BellSouth Operator Transfer Service

E18.2.1 General Description

BellSouth Operator Transfer Service provides routing of IC Operator Services calls from the Company's **BellSouth** Operator Services System location to an IC location within the Local Access Transport Area (LATA) of the IC's end user.

E18.2.2 Undertaking of the Company

- A.** The Company will provide **BellSouth Operator Transfer Service** from its **BellSouth Operator Services System** location(s) as specified in the National Exchange Carrier Association, Inc., F.C.C. No. 4.
- B.** The Company operator will deliver customer end user requests for transfer to the IC location in the LATA of the IC's end user subject to the rates and charges set forth in E18.2.5 following.
- C.** **BellSouth Operator Transfer Service** traffic will be routed from the **BellSouth Operator Services System** location to the IC location via the IC's **BellSouth SWA** FGD, TSBSA 3 trunks.
- D.** The Company will provision **BellSouth SWA** FGD, TSBSA 3 facilities as set forth in Section E6. preceding. (D)
- E.** The Company will specify the **BellSouth Operator Services System** location(s) which provide **BellSouth Operator Transfer Service** for each LATA. (D)
 1. At the IC's request, the Company will provide a list of the LATAs served by each of its **BellSouth Operator Services System** locations which provide **BellSouth Operator Transfer Service**.
 2. When it becomes necessary, as determined by the Company, to change a **BellSouth Operator Services System** location, the Company will notify the involved ICs six months prior to the change. For such changes, the regulations as set forth in Section E2. of this Tariff apply.
- F.** Appropriate rates and charges for **BellSouth SWA** FGD, TSBSA 3 service apply when such trunks are used to transport an end user's request from the **BellSouth Operator Services System** location to the IC location. In addition, charges as specified in E18.2.5 following apply to each end user request transferred to the IC.

E18. BELLSOUTH OPERATOR SERVICES ACCESS SERVICE

E18.2 BellSouth Operator Transfer Service (Cont'd)

E18.2.2 Undertaking of the Company (Cont'd)

- G. When the IC has both interstate and intrastate BellSouth Operator Transfer Service traffic, the percentage intrastate usage determined for the IC's BellSouth SWA FGD, TSBSA 3 service as specified in Section E2. of this Tariff will be applied to the BellSouth Operator Transfer Service charges. (D)

E18.2.3 Obligations of the IC

- A. The IC will establish an IC location, if none exist, and will order BellSouth SWA FGD, TSBSA 3 trunks, if none exist, to interconnect with the OSS location(s) serving all LATAs within the OSS serving area where the IC requests BellSouth Operator Transfer Service. (D)
- B. IC facilities at the IC location shall provide the necessary on-hook, off-hook, answer and disconnect supervision.
- C. When ordering BellSouth Operator Transfer Service, the IC shall determine and specify the number of new or additional BellSouth SWA FGD, TSBSA 3 trunks desired, if any, to carry IC operator services end user requests from the BellSouth Operator Services System location to the IC location as specified in Section E5. of this Tariff. (D)
- D. The IC must order capacity sufficient to handle customer operator services end user requests originating from all Company end offices within each LATA of the BellSouth Operator Services System serving area where BellSouth Operator Transfer Service is requested.
- E. Jurisdictional reporting will apply as specified for BellSouth SWA FGD, TSBSA 3 in Section E2. of this Tariff for determining the Percent Interstate Usage (PIU). (D)

E18.2.4 Rate Regulations

- A. The Operator Transfer charge is applied on a per end user request transferred basis, as set forth in E18.2.5 following. A request shall be considered transferred when the Company operator activates the BellSouth Operator Services System switch which routes the call from the BellSouth Operator Services System location to the IC location.
- B. Switched access premium rates and charges, recurring and nonrecurring, as set forth in Section E6. of this Tariff will apply to all end user requests transferred from the BellSouth Operator Services System location to the IC location via the IC's BellSouth SWA FGD, TSBSA 3 trunks. In addition, Rate Regulations as specified in Section E6. will apply. (D)

E18.2.5 Rates and Charges

- A. End User Request for Service Transfer
1. Operator Transfer

(a) Each

Rate	USOC
\$.35	NA